Public Document Pack

Argyll

Argyll and Bute Council \
Combhairle Earra Ghaidheal agus Bhoid %B ute
Corporate and Legal Services COU N CIL

Director: Nigel Stewart

Kilmory, Lochgilphead, PA31 8RT

Tel: 01546 602127 Fax: 01546 604444
DX 599700 LOCHGILPHEAD

e.mail —nigel.stewart@argyll-bute.gov.uk

13 February 2003

NOTICE OF MEETING
A meeting of the AUDIT COMMITTEE will be held in the COUNCIL CHAMBER, KILMORY,
LOCHGILPHEAD on FRIDAY, 21 FEBRUARY 2003 at 2:15 PM, which you are requested to attend.

Nigel Stewart
Director of Corporate and Legal Services

BUSINESS
1. APOLOGIES
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

3. MINUTES
Minutes of meeting held on 8 November 2002 (PAGES 1 - 4)

4. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE/RISK MANAGEMENT
Report by Head of Legal Services (PAGES 5 - 6)

5. PROGRESS REPORT ON EXTERNAL AUDIT REPORTS FROM
PRICEWATERHOUSE COOPERS TO THE COUNCIL FOR 2000/01
Report by Internal Audit Manager (PAGES 7 - 28)

6. PROGRESS REPORT ON EXTERNAL AUDIT REPORTS TO COUNCIL FROM
2001/02
Report by Internal Audit Manager (PAGES 29 - 102)

7. PROGRESS REPORT ON INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2002-2003
Report by Internal Audit Manager (PAGES 103 - 106)

8. ANNUAL AUDIT PLAN 2003-2004
Report by Internal Audit Manager (PAGES 107 - 112)



AUDIT COMMITTEE

Vincent Bradbury (Chairman) Councillor Alistair MacDougall
Councillor Robert Macintyre Councillor Gordon McKinven
Councillor James McQueen Graham Michie

Councillor John Stirling (Chairman)

Contact: Ruby Campbell 01546 604331



Page 1 Agenda ltem 3

ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL

MINUTES of MEETING of AUDIT COMMITTEE held in THE COUNCIL
CHAMBERS, KILMORY, LOCHGILPHEAD on FRIDAY 8 NOVEMBER

2002
Present: Councillor John Stirling (In the Chair)
Councillor Gordon McKinven Councillor Robert Maclntyre
Councillor James McQueen Mr Graham Michie
Attending: Stewart McGregor, Director of Finance

Charles Reppke, Head of Democratic & Community Services
Gerry Wilson, Head of I.T. Infrastructure

Alistair Bovaird, Head of Corporate Policy

Ian Nisbet, Audit Manager

Kevin Anderson, Education Finance Team

Asif Haseeb, Audit Scotland

Steve Clark, KPMG

Steve Keightley, KPMG

Apologies: Councillor Alistair MacDougall
Mr Vincent Bradbury
1. MINUTES

The Committee approved the Minutes of the Audit Committee of 26 July 2002 as a
correct record.

2. EDUCATION FINANCIAL POSITION

The progress, for the period to 30 August 2002, on the improvements to financial
control within Education was reported on by the Education Finance Team.

Decision
To note the progress made by the Education Finance Team.

(Ref. Report by Education Finance Control Monitoring Group dated 11 September
2002, submitted.)

0170DG/audit com 8 Nov 02



3@

3m)

Page 2

EXTERNAL AUDIT REPORTS TO COUNCIL FROM 1999/00 TO PRESENT —
PROGRESS REPORT

A review regarding the progress made by management in the implementation of
External Audit from Pricewaterhouse Coopers has been undertaken and was reported
on by the Internal Audit Manager.

Decision

To note the contents of the Internal Audit Manager’s report and that it be followed up
by Internal Audit.

(Ref. Report by Internal Audit Manager dated 8 November 2002, submitted.)
SECOND INTERIM MANAGEMENT LETTER 200/01 — I.T. UPDATE

The Head of I.T. Infrastructure provided an update on the outstanding items on the
second interim management letter 2000/01.

Decision

1 To note the explanations offered by the I.T. department and to request a further
report to the next meeting on progress on compliance in the content of the KPMG
review of the I.T. service and the departments success or otherwise in attracting the

extra resources necessary to ensure compliance.

2 That a follow up report from Internal Audit on I.T. update be submitted to the
Strategic Policy Committee.

(Ref. Report by Head of I.T. Infrastructure dated 30 October 2002, submitted.)

CORPORATE POLICY UPDATE ON STATUTORY PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS

The Head of Corporate Policy submitted a report on Statutory Performance Indicators
which was presented to the Strategic Policy Committee on 3 October 2002

Decision
Agreed to note the present position and to continue to monitor progress.

(Ref. Report by the Head of Corporate Policy dated 8 November 2002, submitted,
Report by Head of Corporate Policy dated 3 October 2002, submitted.)

EXTERNAL AUDIT REPORTS TO COUNCIL FROM 2001/02
The Internal Audit Manager outlined the progress made by management in the

implementation of recommendations made by Audit Scotland, the Council’s new
External Auditors.

0170DG/audit com 8 Nov 02



*8

Page 3

Decision
Agreed to note the contents of the report

(Ref. Report by Internal Audit Manager dated 8 November 2002, submitted.)

UPDATE REPORT ON INTERNAL AUDIT RESOURCES 2002/03

The Internal Audit Manager updated the Committee on the review which was carried
out in order to ascertain the position of Internal Audit in relation to resources and time
available against the objectives set out in the Annual Audit Plan for 2002/03

Decision

Agreed to note the contents of the report.

(Ref. Report by Internal Audit Manager dated 8 November 2002, submitted.)
PROGRESS REPORT ON INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2002/03

The progress on the Audit work performed by Internal Audit during the second quarter
0f 2002/03 was reported on by the Internal Audit Manager.

Decision

1 To note the progress made with the Annual Audit Plan 2002/03.

2 That further progress reports be presented to future meetings of the Committee.
(Ref. Report by Internal Audit Manager dated 8 November 2002, submitted.)
LOCAL CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Director of Corporate & Legal Services submitted a report which had previously
been before the Standards Committee, on 31 October 2002.

Decision
1 Agreed to note the appendix action points.
2 Agreed that a report on Risk Management be presented to the next meeting.

(Ref. Report by the Director of Corporate & Legal Services dated October/November
2002, submitted.)

FUTURE ARRANGEMENTS FOR THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Director of Corporate & Legal Services submitted a report detailing the need to
look forward to the period up to and beyond the Council Elections in May 2003.

0170DG/audit com 8 Nov 02



Page 4

Decision

1 Agreed to add in wording ‘ceased to be a Councillor on or since the day of the
preceding ordinary Elections’ as stated in 3.7 (1) & (2) of the report.

2 Agreed to endorse the Standards Committee approach regarding continuation of
Independent Members serving no more than two consecutive terms and that a
person should not be appointed as an Independent Member who is a relative or a
close friend of a current Councillor of this Council.

3 Agreed to recommend the foregoing to the Council.

(Ref. Report by Director of Corporate & Legal Services dated 8 November 2002,
submitted.)

DATE OF NEXT MEETING

The next meeting of the Audit Committee will be held on 21 February 2003.

0170DG/audit com 8 Nov 02



Page 5 Agenda ltem 4

ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL MANAGEMENT TEAM
CORPORATE & LEGAL SERVICES 3 FEBRUARY 2003
AUDIT COMMITTEE

21 FEBRUARY 2003

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE/RISK MANAGEMENT

1. SUMMARY

1.1 A formal assessment of business risks is required to be undertaken by the
Council in accordance with Corporate Governance arrangements. The
services of our public liability insurers and claims handlers — Risk
Management Partners and Gallagher Bassett will be used to facilitate this
exercise and create a formal Risk Register.

2. RECOMMENDATION

2.1 The Audit Committee note the arrangements in place to train staff with
regard to strategic and operational risks; the creation of a Risk Register
and the ongoing monitoring and updating of the Register.

3. DETAIL

3.1 An essential part of Council business is to ensure that major business risks
are identified and covered as far as possible. A process has to be
undertaken whereby such risks are identified by Management and
Members with appropriate officers tasked to monitor such risks with pre-
agreed timescales. This process is an essential part of Corporate
Governance.

3.2 In order to facilitate an exercise of formally identifying business risks and
preparing a Risk Register the Strategic Policy Committee, on 12 December
2002, agreed to utilise the services of Risk Management Partners and
Gallagher and Bassett who are our public liability insurers and claims
handlers respectively.  The following proposal, which sets out a
framework to assist the Council with the carrying out of risk audits within
Services, the development of risk profiles and the compilation of a Risk
Register, has been agreed -

3.2.1 30 January - Presentation to all Members following Strategic
Policy Committee.

3.2.2 3 and 24 February - Half day training sessions for Management
Team; Heads of Service and Members of the Risk Management
Group.



Susan Mair

3.23

324

3.25

3.2.6

3.2.7

3.2.8

3.2.9

3.2.10

3.2.11

Page 6

5 and 6 March - Strategic Interviews with at least two Heads of
Service per department, carried out by loss control consultant
firm Gallagher Bassett and the Council’s Risk and Insurance
Manager.

7 —20 March - Preparation of draft Report and Risk Register -
carried out by loss control consultant firm Gallagher Bassett in
association with the Council’s Risk and Insurance Manager and
Heads of Service.

3 April - Presentation of Report and draft Risk Register to
Strategic Policy Committee.

May/June - Chief Executive/Leader of the Council to “sign off”
an appropriate control statement for 2002/03 to include statement
on procedures in place in terms of identification of risks.

May to July - Four training seminars for operational managers to
be held in Helensburgh; Dunoon; Oban and Lochgilphead.

July to September - Four workshops for operational managers on
identification and assessment of operational risks to be held in
Helensburgh; Dunoon; Oban and Lochgilphead.

Thereafter - the Risk Management Group to determine ongoing
monitoring of identified risks; identification of new risks and
updating of Register; post Council restructuring. It is anticipated
that this will be achieved via discussions with Heads of Service
who will be asked to confirm how they are managing risks and
identifying new risks.

Risk Register to be in place by end of financial year 2003/04.

Annual report to Audit Committee including updated Risk
Register from April 2004 onwards.

Head of Legal Services
27 January 2003

For further information contact: Verona MacDonald, Risk & Insurance Manager,

3222 Jan03

Tel: 01546 604229



Page 7 Agenda Iltem 5

ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL AUDIT COMMITTEE
FINANCE 21" FEBRUARY 2003

PROGRESS REPORT on EXTERNAL AUDIT REPORTS FROM
PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS (PwC) TO THE COUNCIL FOR 2000/2001

1. SUMMARY

Internal Audit has prepared a list of all external audit management letters where
recommendations still remain outstanding. (See Appendix 1). Management progress
regarding the implementation of these recommendations has been reviewed by Internal
Audit the results of which are detailed below.

2.  RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 The contents of this report are to be noted and followed up by Internal Audit.

3. DETAILS

3.1  Areview by Internal Audit as at the 9th g anuary 2003 indicated that only one
recommendation from the Interim Management Letter 2000/2001 remains to be
implemented. This has a long-term implementation date of March 2003 but we can
report that good progress is being made. (See Appendix 2).

3.2 Areview by Internal Audit as at the 9th g anuary 2003 indicates that there are now
only 2 recommendations still to be implemented by the IT department from the
Second Interim Management Letter 2000/2001. The IT Head of Service, Mr Gerry
Wilson, has submitted a report covering progress for review by the Audit
Committee. (See Appendix 3).

3.3  Areview by Internal Audit as at the 9th g anuary 2003 indicates that there are 2
recommendations yet to be fully implemented from the Audit Management Letter
2000/2001. Both recommendations are inter related with the completion of (9.02)
dependent on the completion of (9.01) where external agencies have been
appointed but have still to complete their assignment. (See Appendix 4).

3.4  With regard to the above management letters, Internal Audit has carried out testing
in order to confirm the assurances obtained from management.

4. CONCLUSIONS

Implementation of recommendations will continue to be monitored by Internal
Audit as part of the annual audit plan. Those action points remaining to be
implemented have been reported to committee with reports provided by the
appropriate officials.



Page 8

5. IMPLICATIONS
5.1 Policy: None
5.2 Financial: None
5.3  Personnel: None
54  Legal: None
5.5  Equal Opportunities: None

For further information please contact lan Nisbet, Internal Audit Manager (01546 604216)

Ian Nisbet
Internal Audit Manager21Feb2003.
21febprogreport21feb



Page 9
APPENDIX 1

EXTERNAL AUDIT REPORTS

Comments Recommendations
PwC Report Name Obtained from Outstanding
Respondents Y/N
Interim Management Letter 2000/2001 Y 1
Second Interim Management Letter 2000/2001 Y
Audit Management Letter 2000/2001 Y 2




Page 10



Page 11

B S¥3d0Q FSNOHIIMMINA

¢ XIAN3IddVv

TIONNOD

OJNHP

[ASIY

(€007 AAVANVS 6 Parepd) 1007 SAIINALJAS
10/0002 SALLAT INANADVNVIN WTHALNI

"TIDONNOD ALNd ® TIADYV



Page 12

B SQUI0Q HSNOHIIIR]

I 1007 1aquidydag
Ao1104 2139181S Ao1j04 2139181S 3} UO U BIPUN
o 03 ssardoxd oy 03 ssaidoxd 9q [[IM MIIAJI®
Sunzodai st Sunaodai st ‘A[[eur -ysmumwip [[im
dnoin oy, ‘uerd dnoin oy, ‘uerd anssI Y} ‘9[qels 10w
uonoe oy} jsurede | uonoe oy} Jsurede owoo9q sowurer3ord
; ‘uoneardiojursiu
ssa1301d maraal ssa13o1d maraax oy sy poyudwa[duur : o
0} PaysI[qeIsd 0} PaySsI[qeIsd orom suerd JOJISHE SOLLIED pue
u00q Sey u00q sey a1030q s1oured qim 3upiodor eoueLres pue
S[BIOLIJO IOTUDS S[RIOLIJO IOTUDS uone)Nsuod painbal 3utiojuoul [eyuduuiredop
pUB SIOQUWISW JO |  PUB SISQUISW JO s199f01d swos ‘uonippe Jo Kyrxordwioo oy
dnoiS Suuroyiuow | dnoiS Surioyruow uy ‘siredar 1o S[eLIdJeW SaseaIoul SIY [, "Iedk oy
V "uoneonpyg V ‘uoneonpyg ‘Fuigess ‘3o ‘puads moygnoIy) suonenjonyy
J0J wea) doueULf JOJ wed) dourUly uodn op1oap 03 SIAP[oY armyrpuadxe pue swodur
pauowdne ue £q | pojuswdne ue Aq 193pnq 10} PaIsIXd 9Y} J93[Jal 210J213Y)
possardoid Buraq | passairdord Suroq adoos g[qeiapisuo) -KyIATo® jou S90p Jo3pnq oy [,
Apuarmno st ued Apuarmno st ued s h::u:oax.o vcm
uonoe oYL ‘OMd | uonoe oyl ‘DMJ 'SIOTOBa) J— :,3: sunedop “IB9K o)
Aq paygnuapt jey} | Aq payniuapI Jey) peoH 03 30311p Surpuny Jo ao:.oomg onsI[Eal noygnoiyy Ajojerrdordde
uey} ONSSI JOpIm uey} ONssI JOpIm (st 3097391 Jo uorsiaoxd o e oc;e. d 03300 vQ.bwo paseyd us9q jou
yonuw e ST STy ., yonw e ST SIY] | 9[qisuodsar 1m syrodax pUE pun, 9oUS[[90X7 ‘ 5q ued Eowcmfo pey 193pnq o asneoaq
"UOIRONPH UM | "UOHBONPH UMM Apyoa11p amyng pue | o urm syoaford mau 5 d UQSLIE PBY Q0UBLIBA
[0UO0d JeIoUBUL | [ONUOD [BIOUBUL | ST QouURUL] | uooun( ‘Wea], Jo uorsuedxa oy} ueaq UHLOIE 9AT0R)J0 YeH) [eLISJRW JO JoquInu
ur paxmnbaz u1 pasmbax | jo 1030011 doueul] AU} pey sansst uiseyd oy SINSUD 0 DIAILSJO |- 1eq) pAy31 Y3y syuodar
€00T YoIe]N sjuowaAoxduur sjuowaAoxduwr g | jo Ayjiqisuodsox Jo Auew Jo asned oy J, sauy] Jofewr ot sso10e unojiuow 393pnq
[nun sanunuod uerd Y} SSAIppE 0} oy ssaIppe 01 | ‘ssaooid uf o moN) | Apurof as1o10x9 1ofew suioped amyrpuadxo A[yjuowr uoreonpg
uonjoe oY) pue apewr | paredard usaq sey | paredsid uoaq sey © U9YRLIOPUN JARY JJRIS puE SWOdUL MILAJL 31 JO M3IASI IN()
Suraq st ssa1So1g ueld uonoe uy uejd uonoe uy SwioSuQ | 10000 ydosor | uoneonps pue ooueur | PINOYS JusunIRdap YL,
paseyd
£9yeridoadde udaaq jou
sey ja3pnq uoneINpPy | 70T
0/€0/81
€0/10/60 20/01/11 €0/90/0¢ je se 19930 juswroy)
e se ajepdn jeseaepdn | e sedepdn epdn | drqisuodsay JUSWIIGRUR]A] | UONBPUIWIOINY sguipuig

¢ XIAN3IddVv

SNOILVANIINNODHY dA'TIV.LAd




Page 13

B SQUI0Q HSNOHIIIR]

z 1007 1aquidydag
£00T YoTBIN "€00T YOTeIN
nun sanunuod [nun sanunuod ‘rouno) Ayl jo
ueld uonoe ueld uonoe syuowredop 194)0 wox
YL, "ddpIuItuo)) YL, "ddpIuIto)) S9010AUI 91} JO SuTun
20/€0/81
€0/10/60 20/01/11 20/90/07 Sy 10 juswuwo)
e se ajepdn jeseaepdn | Jesedepdn epdn | drqisuodsay JUSWIIGRUR]A] | UONBPUIWOINY sguipuig

¢ XIAN3IddVv




Page 14



Page 15
APPENDIX 3

ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL AUDIT COMMITTEE
REPORT BY HEAD OF L.T. INFRASTRUCTURE

SECOND INTERIM MANAGEMENT LETTER 2000/01 - I.T. UPDATE

This report updates members on the outstanding items from the Second Interim Management
Letter 2000/01. At the time of the last report in October 2002, five items remained
outstanding. My update to the Audit Committee outlined the pressures and resource
difficulties faced by the IT department and the Committee agreed on a plan of action for the
five remaining items. Despite those pressures, I am pleased to report that three of the 5 items
have now been concluded with the remaining two proceeding as agreed at the last meeting.

The two remaining items are as follows:

1. Key Performance Indicators
An analysis of the most appropriate indicators has been concluded and a report
submitted to the Management Team on 3 Feb 2003 for consideration. The report
suggests applying the national Society of Information Technology Managers (Socitm)
internal indicators to the service and these will be measured and reported on an
ongoing basis.

2. Disaster Recovery
An initial contingency planning exercise has been completed and a decision taken to
employ external assistance to progress the project. Newell and Budge are now working
with IT staff to prepare a report on the options available to the Council to ensure Unix
and Microsoft Exchange services face minimal disruption in the event of a
disaster. The report will outline weaknesses in current server rooms and backup
procedures, highlight the various commercial options available to the Council,
including the delivery and configuration of replacement servers, prioritise services
based on input from the IT management and senior officers of the Council, and
suggest ways in which a recurring contingency planning exercise can be introduced to
the Council's standard procedures. A request for funding has been included in the
forthcoming budget process and the report will be submitted to the Management Team
in March 2003.

Gerry Wilson
Head of I.T. Infrastructure
29 January 2003

RepGW132



Page 16



Page 17

¢ XIANdddV

(€007 Lrenuer gz payepd) 1007 ATINC
10/0007 YALLAT INAINADOVNVIN WIIALNI ANODAS

"TIONNOD ALN9 ¥ TIADYV



Page 18

3uneaI suonIpuod
pue SuLId)

PISIAQI Q0NpoIIUl
0} PIIISIAAL

Ud3q dABY JI0MIOU
s[rouno)) ayj 0}
SSQJ0E 9J0WIAI dARY
Jo/pue suonjeordde
ssauisnq

Jno yroddns

oym s1drjddns asoyy

00T QU
st 93ep uondrdwo)
*93e10)S [RIIUAD 10J

SJUQWNOOP JO FUIXdPUL

pue Suruueds Moj[e
0} pouued uooq sey
Sururen aeudoxddy

"PAMIIAJI PUB PIJL[[0D

Suroq are s10eNnU0d
Q0UBURIUTRW FUTISTXD
pue doe[d ur mou st

T00T YoTe]N puy : G 93e1g
100 19quiaoa(g

“dn-[erp reuro)xo 3urpedax
9SNE[D B UIBIUOD JUBAJ[AI

2IoUM pUER ‘asne[d A[[e)judpIjuod
© 0ARY ‘siseq Sur03-uUo UL Uo
parepdn aq prnoys saned pary
UIIM P[OY SIOBRIUOD J0URUIUTRU

Y spoenuo)) oy, | Hoddns uonensiuiupy pug : ¢ % € 93e1§ ueoun(q Yy PUE SJUOWIAAIZY [AIT 9IIAIIS B EN|
‘po[dwod
Kyred payy
£q $s320e 3unsanbaz
10} 2INPad0IJ “Sop "PIpI023I A[[BULIO]
9OIAIRS U} Je PA330] 2q prnoys sisanbar ur-ferp (e
2q 03 ssa00e. Ayred 700 Joquaoaq pue s3oenuod Ayed pary) urgm
paryy [[e saxmbar | mou st djep uonajdwo) papnjour 9q prnoys Juryiomou
UoIyM paonponul PO TIIUIPI UAIq dn [erp Jo asn oy} uo sUONOLISIY
U93q sey a1npadoid | dARY SPUNJ dANBUI) R :21e
MIU Y "PIAJOSAT puE PaJed0[[LaI sojdwexy -opew sjuowdAoxdwr
u23q oAey sw[qoid [uaaq sey yse], ‘swajqoxd PUB U RLIOPUN Aq PINOYS SSIIIL
[eorut29) [V [eoruy09) SuIAey 1S 1007 10quooJ puyg A[ouuo)) 'y | dn-Jerp IoA0 S[O1IUOD JO MIIAI Y I3y
€0/10/62 uonejudwd[dury
je se 9epdn 20/01/11 1e se gepdn Jo e PR3y | IO dqisuodsdy SUONEPUIWIWIO0IINY | 0N NUAIY
NV1d NOILLDYV 9 NOLLODYS

HALLAT INHIWNTOVNVIA WNTTHLNI ANODYS




Page 19

< Aenud

1BULIO) OTUOIII[D
ur 9[qe[IeA® 9q
[ e quawdimba
Suruueds yum
sworqoid [earuydd}
Jo uonnjosar
Surmorjoy

pue A[[enudd
P91B[[00 Ud2q

dARY SJUAWNDOP
JOBIJUOD JUBAD[Y
‘s1o11ddns asoyy
M SJUdWIdAISe
3unsixs mo jo
wed se paonponur
Ud3q JARY SHIOMIU
INO 0} SSAY
Jj0wdyY JuI[ou0d
10J SQINPadoId
"AJITerIudpIyuo)) 0}

€0/10/67
e se yepdn

20/01/11 e se epd)

uonejudwR[du]
Jo e PRIy

IdYJO drqisuodsay

SUON) EPUIW T 0IY

*ON] IUAIIY

NV1d NOILDV 9 NOLLOYS

HALLAT INHIWNTOVNVIA WNTTHLNI ANODYS




Page 20

‘sarnpadoad

dnyoeq pue swooux
JOAIQS JUALIND UL
SOSSAUNBOM QUIJINO
[1» 310da1 Y |,
*10)SESIP © JO JUOAD
oy ur uondnisip
[ewruIu 9ovj
SOOIAIQS Q3UBYIXH
1JOSOIOIIA

pUE XIU) 9INSUd

0} [10Uno0)) Y}

03 9[qe[reAe suondo
o uo odax

& aredaid 03 Jyess
LI ynm Sunpiom
mou dre a3png

pue [[oMmaN 109foxd
oy} ssa13oad 0y
Q0UB)SISSE [BUI)XD
Kordwd 03 udyey
UOISIOIp € pue
pao[dwos uoaq sey
as1010%9 Suruuerd

pue A19A0031

©Jep JI QUIULIONP

01 sarorjod doueInsur

S [1oUN0)) Y} JO
JUSWISSISSE UB OpN[oUl
[[14 pue sew)sLIy)

03 Jor1id uayeIIOPUN

aq [1M 9SIOIOXD
Suruued orLreudos

pue Aoud3unuod

VY ‘uonnjos

Kue yuowddur

01 Pay1IuapI JoK
193pnq ou YIIm [1OUN0))
a3 10J suonedrdur
90INOSAI PUE [BIOUBULJ
JUBOIJIUSIS dARY [[IM
109load oy, ‘wmioy oyy
01 9ADBNIUL AIOA0D3T
I9)SeSIp AJInoas
UOIJBUWLIOJUT J[BIS

[N & uo uonejudsaid e
Suuredaad st uos[ipy H
"PAYSI[QLISO Uddq MOU

‘siseq Suro3uo

ue uo pajepdn pue paysay oq Uy}
prnoys ued siyy, “pado[aaap 9q
0} ue[d A19A0091 19)SESIP PI[ILIdP
B PUB OpBW 9 0} JUSWSSISSE
S [N} B 9[qeUs P[noys SIy [,
Uy eMIpUN 3q ISIIOX? Juruueld
OLIBUQOS pue AJud3unuod e

Koud3unuod sey wnIo AJnodag Je() PIPUSWIOIAT ST T QOUDI[ISAT
[eniur uy uonewIoyuy YL, 1007 1990100 puyg UOSTIA "D WOJSAS 9SBAIOUT 0} JIPIO UJ RN
€0/10/62 uonejudwd[dury
je se epdn 70/01/11 e se yepdn JO e PIRISY | IO dqisuodsay SUOEPUIWIUIONNY | °"ON UAIJNY

NV1d NOILDV 9 NOLLOYS

HALLAT INHIWNTOVNVIA WNTTHLNI ANODYS




Page 21

'$s3001d 393pnq
Surooy3103 Ay ur
papn[oul uaaq sey
Surpuny 10y 3sonbazx
VY “sainpadoid
pIepue)s

s,JIouno)) ay) 03
paonponur 9q ued
9s1019%9 Suruue[d
Koua3unuod
Surunoar e yoym
ur sAem 1s933ns
pue ‘[rouno)) ay}
JO S19913J0 JOTUdS
pue judwoseurw
LI 2y3 woy ndur
U0 Paseq SIIIAIIS
aspuond ‘SI9AISS
yuowdoe[dar

Jo uonen3yuod
pue KIdAI[OP

oy Surpnpout
Trouno)) ayy

03 9[qeqreAe suondo
[BI0IOWIIOD SNOLIBA

MO[[O} 03 9ARY [[IM
I)SESIP B JO JUIAQ o)
ur swsAs [ Suroedar
J0 uLINJAS U0 PIseq
JUOWISSASSE JSLI [[NJ

v -sororjod aoueinsur
woJj jow A[rented oq

oyl Wy3Ny31y | ued 3509 Aoud3unuod
€0/10/62 uonejudwd[dury
je se 9epdn 20/01/11 1e se gepdn Jo e PR3y | IO dqisuodsdy SUONEPUIWIWIO0IINY | 0N NUAIY

NV1d NOILDV 9 NOLLOYS

HALLAT INHIWNTOVNVIA WNTTHLNI ANODYS




Page 22

‘paR[dwod
ud9q sey JIomiu
ay} 03 sa3ueyd

"€00T YIIBIA JO puo Aq
saInpasoid Jo roquinu

© 103 03 Surysnd a1y
)oK se djep

Jofew Sursuoyine ou — sampaodod uo 100 [Hdy "pPoudyI3uds 2q PINOYS NI0MIdU
10J onpoooid oy, | Suppom APUdLInNd Iy 100Z 1290300 pug A[jouuo))'y [1oUno0)) Y} JOAO S|ONUOD) PN
" 1181 U} [[IM
SId osoy jsurede
suone[noed
¢ reaoxdde 1oy 03
10lqns * pue ¢00
Arenigo ¢ uo
wed |, Judwadeuey
[1ouno)
oy} 03 payrodar
oq [ esodoxd
SIYL, ° 9OIAIOS
1913 03 S[d "C00T Iequisde(g
[euIu] INLIDOS Jo puo Aq pajrodax ‘siseq Je[n3ax
JUALIND Y} pue paysIqeIsd € U0 juowddeuew 0) payodar
K1dde 03 asodoad S.'T'd 2Aey 03 103adxyg pue paysI[qeIsd 2q pJnoys
11 ‘suondo jo S, 'T'd 9[qeinseowt 1007 JoquaodJ puyg yuownaedop 11 oY) 10§ SI103BIIpUI
MITAJI SUIMO[[O] 1e 3uj00] Apuarm)) 100 Joquidag puyg pAog'D doueuIO}Idd A9y [eULIO] TREN|
€0/10/62 uonejudwd[dury
je se yepdn 20/01/11 1e se jepd) Jo dqe( pRIdY | IO dqisuodsay SUONBPUIWIWIOINY | "ON dUIIJIY

NV1d NOILDV 9 NOLLOYS

HALLAT INHIWNTOVNVIA WNTTHLNI ANODYS




Page 23

paordwo)

SIOA\ TBIIUISSD

j0U ST 3ULIO)TUOW
onewoINe — A[enuew
paiojuowr are sdnypoeg
‘pawdwo)

JIOAN SSQJ0®

d.L 101109 01 paj[elsul
U93q Sty JOAIS MAU Y/
"SIy} Op 03 uI Jy3noiq
oq [[tM Jyels Jeuonippe

€007 Arenuer Aq ouop
‘paambaz 10U JT "€00T YoTeN
se pajepdn £q duop 9q pInoys
Ud9q AARY S}OYS — $90IN0S3I JO Yor]
uoreIn3|yuod | Inp QUOp UAq J0uU SeH
1oy
€0/10/62 uonejudwd[dury
je se yepdn 20/01/11 1e se jepd) Jo dqe( pRIdY | IO dqisuodsay SUONBPUIWIWIOINY | "ON dUIIJIY

NV1d NOILDV 9 NOLLOYS

HALLAT INHIWNTOVNVIA WNTTHLNI ANODYS




Page 24



Page 25

B 3400 JSNOH¥AWIOR] ﬁ

7007 Arenuep [

TIDNMOD

INHss

[ASIY

(€007 AAVANYVT 6 PMepdN) 7007 AAVANVT L
10/000C HALLA'T INHINAOVNVIA LIANV

TIDNNOD ALNd ® TIADYV

¥ XIAN3IddV



oo

'

B 43400 FSNOHIAIOR]

7007 A1enuep /

Page 26

"SIy} U0
3unjiom mou are
DN 9SI0I9Xd
s1y) Sunyelopun
WAy 0} MIIA

B [JIM SIOSIAPE
LVA S unoy

00T Ul d01A13S
SIY) J0J JOpU}aI 0}
UOLUAIUT AU} [1S ST

2007 Ul A[1e9 9S1019Xd

3ulopu] © Jno

K1res 0) uonuojul O}
s13] -oddns ao1ape
pue uondwaxa [ented
[j0q 10J Aoueynsuoo

‘sIseq A[own

uo uddeepun SI SIY)
ey} yons uonisod
uondwoxa jened

SJI JO uUone[NOED

"1002/000C

J10J papIuIqns suImal [ VA

oy} uo patedap xey ndur oy Jo
%G uo paseq) 1eak 1ad 0000V EF
JO SS90X0 Ul 9q P[NOM 11 0} 3S0D
LV A 3 MWI] %G S P330X3 0}
9IoM [10UNO)) 93 J1 JBY} PAJOU 3q
PINOYS J] “JII SOUWIUTUL 3P 9%4G SH
UIy}IM pPOUTBWI SBY [IOUN0)) 9}
IoUIoyM 0] SB JUSUIWIOD O} d[qeun
o1& 9M 100T/000C 10 000T/6661
JIOIL J0J suone[noed uonduraxs
[ented Aue Jo oouasqe oy} uJ

"uonenoed 000C/6661
9y} uo SunjIoMm AJUaLINg

QIoM SIASIAPR [V A 11013 18]
PISIAPE 21om am U3noyije ‘sieak
[eroueuly 100C/000¢ 10 000C/6661
oY} JOY}I0 J0J UONR[NO[BD
uondwoxa [ented e uayeIOpuUn
j0U peY [10Uno)) Y} Jey) pajou

Y ‘DINI [BUIIX 10 10J a1npaooid M 9ISIA INO JO oW Y} IV %S
"SI} UO JursjIom )M opew 1S9M g | 10BIIU0D 91) MITADI 0) JUSLIND Y} MIIAI JO [9A9] snwrurw-op uonduwoxa
[[13S 9IB SIOSIAPR U | UQ9q Sey }oBIU0)) uro3uQ /Inowry [, 3u103 s1[1oUno0) 9y 1 | PINOYS [1OUN0)) YL rented VA ®© sey [1ouno)) ayJ,
uonduwaxy [enied
Jjep
20/01/11 | uonddwod 19930 Juomwrwio)
€0/10/60 3¢ se epdn je se jepdn PRIy dqisuodsay JUIWASBUBIA] U0 BPUIWIWI0IY ssurpury

¥ XIAN3IddV

10°6



B 43400 FSNOHIAIOR]

7007 A1enuep /

1

'

Page 27

"BULIOPUD}AT DUSWIOD
0} 9pBW 9q [[IM SJUSWOFULBLIE

‘SI9S1ApE
JBA SUnSIXd o
yim Aemispun

st 303(oad sy
IS[IYM ISIOIOXD
FULIOPUIIAI B INO
SurA1res ur jurod
SN StaldyL
"90IAIOS AIOSIAPR
LVA 9y} Ispus)
-01 0} 9peW 2q
[[1M syuswodueLIe
pao[dwod

ud9q sey

O010AUI SIO}PAID
J10J WIR[OdI [ VA
ur Ae[op awn

‘paredaxd usaq

9ARY SHUNOJJE [enUUR
o} 20U SIY) I8 JOO[
[[14 oM pue (sIosIApe
LVA) DI

)M SUOISSNISIP
Kreurwrjoxd

pey ARy OA\

*S)UB)NSUOD
[eUIo)X? pue

Jyers jo Ayjiqeqreae
ay} uo puadap

[114 31 y3noypy
"JNO PALLIBD 9q [[IM
9SIOXd pue SWOISNod
M JUSWI3e
pue uoIssIuqns

(949 1e S9BI
1SQI0)JUI UO paseq)
Jeak 10d 00S°CEF
Aorewnrxordde

oq pP[noM 9oUBAPE
ue yons jJo 30adsal
ul J1JoU9q MO[JYSeD
94L "paurelqo

3q P[N0d 000 S9SF
punoie jo juowked
LV A ooueApe

JJO auo © ‘sAep (¢ Sl
soo10AUI FUIssao01d
ur Ae[op a8e1oAe

o 361 SISeq Ay}

uQ ‘pue pouad oy
£q passaooad uaaq
jou oAy Jey) porrad
wmal [VA 24l
UIy}Im pojep SOOI0AUL
armpuadxa uo
LVA Aue 10] mo[[e
0] swojIsn)) yIm
ojewnysa xe} yndur ue

‘suorye1ado s [1ouUnod oy} JodJol
03 syuaumsn(pe [enuew jo Joqunu
© sopn[oul 1a3p9] [erouruly

oy} 0} UINJAI Y} JO UOTJBI[IOUODAI
oy ‘siseq A[yauow & U0 JSIOXF

pa3o[dwod uaaq sey [('6 Ul [ JO UOIRWIIS? UO 1S0OM g | 103 91ewunso xey jndur | Sureaide 01 udAIS oq pUE Swolsn)) 0} WINal [V A ©
PauUOnUSW 9SIOIIX O} 90U(Q) | 9SIDIAXA Y} U Suro3uQ JInowry I | ue AJuopr 03 9S10J0XH | PInoys UoneIdpisuo) | sie[dwod AUl [10uno)) oy
wInpPI LVA
100T YITBJAL JO MOIIAY PI[le)d(d
Jjep
20/01/11 | uonddurod 1920 judwuoy)y
€0/10/60 3¢ se epdn je se 9jepd) Pa92.a3y dqisuodsay JUDUWIGRURIA U0 BPUIWIWI0IY ssurpury

¥ XIAN3IddV

06



Page 28



Page 29 Agenda ltem 6

ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL AUDIT COMMITTEE
FINANCE 21" FEBRUARY 2003

PROGRESS REPORT on EXTERNAL AUDIT REPORTS TO COUNCIL FROM
2001/2002

1. SUMMARY

Internal Audit has prepared a list for all external audit management letters produced by
Audit Scotland for 2001/02. (See Appendix 1). A review regarding the progress made by
management in the implementation of these reports recommendations has been performed
the results of which are detailed below.

2.  RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 The contents of this report are to be noted and followed up by Internal Audit.

3. DETAILS

3.1  The Council received an external audit management report from Audit Scotland
entitled Regularity & Governance 2001/2002. A review by Internal Audit of this
reports recommendations as at the 9th g anuary 2003 indicates that out of 9 agreed
recommendations 7 have been implemented and 2 remain outstanding. Of the
remaining 2 recommendations, one relates to authorised signatory lists for the
Payroll section and has gone over its completion date of December 2002. However
we can report that substantial progress has been made with the recommendation
and it will be implemented by the end of February 2003. The implementation of
the other recommendation is held up due to our Oracle software provider’s awaited
response. (See Appendix 2).

3.2 An external report was received from Audit Scotland entitled Management Report
— Regularity & Governance 2001/2002. The focus of the audit was a review of a
number of key systems from which 19 recommendations were made. Internal
Audit can report that 18 of these have implementation dates of March 2003 or
later. The one recommendation relating to November 2002 has been implemented.
A copy of the report is attached see Appendix 3.

3.3 Audit Scotland has produced an Audit of Accounts 2001/02 Audit Memorandum
The 2001/02 final report on the audit of Argyll & Bute Council Final Accounts
was presented to the Council in November 2002. In summary the auditors
commented that there were no qualifications but highlighted the failure of the
Property Maintenance Direct Labour Organisation to meet its financial objective.
They also recommended that the Council should continue to monitor the
Education Departments financial reporting and budget position. I would invite the
Audit Committee to comment on the appropriateness of the Council responses to
the reports 9 recommendations. (See Appendix 4).

3.4  An audit memorandum for Audit of Accounts 2001/02 was presented to the
Council in October 2002. The purpose of this memorandum was to address matters
of accounting principle not previously reported in the Final Report on the Audit of



3.5

5.1
52
53
54

5.5

Page 30

the Council. Internal Audit can report that of 6 recommendations 5 have
implementation dates of March 2003 or later. One recommendation relating to
October 2002 has been implemented. A copy of the report is attached see
Appendix 5.

Audit Scotland in December 2002 produced a report entitled Performance Audit of
Trading Standards. The conclusion drawn was that the Trading Standards Service
has performed above the Scottish average. A total of 11 recommendations have
been made in the report, a copy of the Executive Summary is given in Appendix 6.

CONCLUSIONS

Implementation of recommendations will continue to be monitored by Internal
Audit as part of the annual audit plan. Those remaining to be implemented will be
reported to the Audit Committee.

IMPLICATIONS

Policy: None
Financial: None
Personnel: None
Legal: None
Equal Opportunities: None

For further information please contact lan Nisbet, Internal Audit Manager (01546 604216)

Tan Nisbet

Internal Audit Manager 21February2003.
21febprogreport21feb



Page 31
APPENDIX 1

EXTERNAL AUDIT REPORTS

Comments Recommendations
Audit Scotland Report Name Obtained from Outstanding
Respondents Y/N

Regularity and Governance 2001/02 Y 2
Management Report — Regularity and Governance Y 18
2001/02

Final Report Argyll & Bute Council 2001/02 Y 9
Audit of Accounts 2001/02 — Audit Memorandum Y 5
2001/02 Performance Audit — Trading Standards Y 11




Page 32



Page 33

“A[ypuowt 9 asay)
Sunepdn 01 uoAIS 9q [[IM
: i . wnpap 140144
UOI}RIIPISUOD IOAIMOH
£00¢ ‘A[renuue parepdn "uono9s [[oiked oy Aq
Areniqoq Aq ST Sy, IS A103RUSIS PISY pue paurejurewt 3q prnoys
pao1dwod 200C 200C pasuoyine ue Py sAemye 1SI]  SOII0JeUIIS  pasuoyIne
99 II'M QU | 10quedd( | sey uonods [[oiked oyy. uepnos | | earsuagaidwos pue pajepdnuy | 77 81/6
SununodIIy umwpy
'$$9001d S1U} 01 dATIRUII) B
eonoexd  ou ST AL
QoBJIIUI Ay} AQ  own
[OoBd PojeaId ST QOUAIQJAI
"nssI
: 1orpddns own-ouo e
sty sumsind 21oyM spunjar Y N 10 xe)
K[oAnoe St ]
: : [IoUNOd 0} PIJR[AI PALIYYAI oL
‘s1o1 ddns odwexd oy jeyy pawnsaxd WP oM
d1BMJOS 2002 St 91 ‘sorddns  jgo "PoAOWIAI
oy} 9[oRIO -QUO QAOWNAI 0) AemIdpun 9q pmoys samud  9edrdnp
A RPqueoed foxd : ‘oyeradoidd : d
q PIAJ0OSAI 2002 mou st 12foid vy own ojendoidde 21oyA\ “POWLIONID
9q 03 [[1IS SI Jo pud Joquoydog | 9[qeIOPISUOD QWOS 10 I 9q PpINOYS WISAS  SIONPAIO
waqoxd oy, | 9ep pasIAdY 97 ynm pauuerd uooq sey SIYL | LI ‘Ue[[V V | 9y} uo siorpddns Jo ma1AdI V| 6 01/8
A
£0/10/60 0/01/11 130 eled
e se ggepdn | 1e se gepdn ANeq uondy | dqisuodsay UONBPUIWWIOINY | ON | /93ed
NV1d NOILODV

NOISN'IDONOD AONVNYHAOD X ALIYVINODHY —L1d0dHd INFWNIDVNVYIN

1002/100C - TIDNNOD ALNE 3 TIXOAV T XIANAddV



Page 34



Page 35

APPENDIX 3

Argyll & Bute Council —2001/02

Management Report - Regularity and Governance

Asif A Haseeb, MBA ACMA, Senior Audit Manager, Audit Scotland
7 Floor, Plaza Tower, East Kilbride, G74 1LW
T 01355619200 F 01355 619201



Page 36

ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL 2001/2002

MANAGEMENT REPORT — REGULARITY & GOVERNANCE CONTENTS
CONTENTS
Page
Section 1
Executive Summary 1
Section 2
Action Plan 3
Section 3
Introduction 8
Section 4
Main Findings
¢ Internal Audit 9
¢ Budgetary Control — Education Department 11
¢ Building Maintenance DLO 12
¢ Unified Benefits System 13
¢ Corporate Governance 14
¢ Fraud and Corruption 15
Section 5
Conclusion 16
OCTOBER 2002 AUDIT SERVICES-AUDIT SCOTLAND



Page 37

ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL 2001/2002
MANAGEMENT REPORT — REGULARITY & GOVERNANCE SECTION 1

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Introduction

As part of our final audit for the year to 31 March 2002, we undertook a review of
selected aspects of a number of systems in place within the Council. We have
concluded that in some areas internal control and processes require to be further
developed as highlighted by the need for the Council to take remedial action during
the year. This section summarises the main findings arising from our review.

Main findings

Internal Audit

Progress against the action plan points raised in the 2000/01 report 4 Job Worth Doing
has been good, although there are still some areas where improvements have yet to be
realised. Since the partnership with KPMG commenced in February 2002 a risk-based
audit needs assessment and a three year strategic internal audit plan have been
prepared and approved by the Audit Committee. In our view the audit needs
assessment employed sound methodology and the strategic plan provides an
appropriate basis for internal audit to provide an objective assessment of the adequacy,
reliability and effectiveness of the Council’s internal control systems. We have
concerns in some areas, including the independence of internal audit, the level of
IT/MIS coverage, and the staffing and structure of the internal audit section.

Budgetary Control — Education Department

During 2001/02 it became apparent to Council management that budgetary control
within the Education Department was not operating effectively and that there was a
possibility that the Department would overspend its budget for 2001/02. In a review
to examine financial control within the Education Department, KPMG outlined a
number of areas where financial control systems were unreliable and commented that
the process employed to prepare income and expenditure projections was not
sufficiently detailed and robust. A dedicated team was put in place to revise the
budgetary control system and their work is continuing.

Building Maintenance DLO

As reported in the 2001/02 annual accounts, the Building Maintenance DLO incurred
a deficit of £85,000. The monitoring of management accounts by the Finance
Department during the year highlighted a potential problem. The level of work had
increased from the previous year and controls to ensure that individual jobs were
accurately costed and ongoing cost control measures proved insufficient for a
reasonable return to be achieved.

OCTOBER 2002 PAGE 1 AUDIT SERVICES-AUDIT SCOTLAND



Page 38

ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL 2001/2002
MANAGEMENT REPORT — REGULARITY & GOVERNANCE SECTION 1

Unified Benefits System

A review of procedures relating to the processing of Housing and Council Tax Benefit
claims was undertaken. We noted that procedures could be tightened to potentially
reduce the amounts of benefit overpaid and reconciliations between the Unified
Benefits System and financial ledger should be carried out more regularly. In
addition, communication between departments could be improved with regard to
benefit fraud investigation and the Benefit Procedures Manual should be updated to
clarify the procedures staff should follow when processing backdated applications,
dealing with applications from family or friends and investigating the non-return of
review forms.

Corporate Governance and Fraud and Corruption arrangements

We found that the Council had well developed arrangements to ensure that the three
fundamental principles of corporate governance, openness, integrity and
accountability, are applied and also to prevent and detect fraud and corruption.

Conclusion

Overall the procedures put in place by the Council appear to be operating
satisfactorily. However, some procedures were put in place or enhanced during the
year to meet shortcomings which controls were unable to prevent. Detailed
recommendations are included within our audit findings for each area reviewed, and
are summarised in the following agreed action plan.

OCTOBER 2002 PAGE 2 AUDIT SERVICES-AUDIT SCOTLAND



ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL 2001/2002

Page 39

MANAGEMENT REPORT — REGULARITY & GOVERNANCE SECTION 2
ACTION PLAN
Page/ | No | Recommendation Responsible | Action Date
Para Officer
Ref
Internal Audit
9/5 1 | Management should I. Nisbet/ Training is included in our March
continue to monitor | A. Colligan | partnership agreement with KPMG 2003
the implementation of and will be provided by them.
Fhe outstandlp g points Internal Audit has adopted a
in the action plan . .
. consistent approach in respect of
agreed following the working papers and files.
2000/01 report.
L . New members of staff attend a
Priority: Medium . .
corporate induction course and are
provided with an audit pack that
includes the Audit manual, risk
assessment and strategic plan and
other documents used by Internal
Audit.
10/6 | 2 | Management should I. Nisbet/ The audit plan for 2002/2003 March
10/9 ensure that the plan | A. Colligan | contains less days assigned to 2003
for 2002/03 1s these tasks. The audit plan for
followed as closely as 2002/2003 will be followed as
possible and levels of closely as possible.
non-direct audit work
are monitored
actively.
Priority: High
10/7 | 3 | Any further input to I. Nisbet A Counter Fraud Manager was N/A
benefit fraud appointed on the 2™ of September
investigations should 2002. This will reduce the input
be  restricted  to requirement by Internal Audit.
minimise the effect on
the delivery of the
2002/03 plan.
Priority: Medium
10/8 | 4 | Management should | S. McGregor | The Council recently reviewed the | January
consider the structure of Internal Audit and 2005
appropriateness of the entered into a partnership for
staffing structure of Internal Audit with KPMG for a 3-
internal audit. year period. It is not proposed to
Prioritv: Medi review the structure prior to the
riority: Medium end of the partnership.
OCTOBER 2002 PAGE 3 AUDIT SERVICES-AUDIT SCOTLAND




ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL 2001/2002

Page 40

MANAGEMENT REPORT — REGULARITY & GOVERNANCE SECTION 2
Page/ | No | Recommendation Responsible | Action Date
Para Officer
Ref
10/10 | 5 | Management should I. Nisbet/ The days assigned are to review | Ongoing

consider the relatively | A. Colligan | the IT environment and looked at
low planned input on IT matters from a strategic and
IT/MIS and  the installation level. Controls at an
opportunity afforded individual application level are
for coaching in this addressed during the course of
area. audit. The transfer of experience

Priority: Medium will . l?e progressed over the

remaining life of the partnership.

11/11 | 6 | Management should | S. McGregor | Internal Audit has access to the | January
consider the relative Director of Finance, the Chief 2005
independence of Executive and the Chairman of the
internal  audit and Audit Committee.
current reporting However this will be reviewed at
lines. the termination of the Internal

Priority: Medium Audit partnership with KPMG
Budgetary Control -
Education
Department

12/18 | 7 | Management should | S. MacDonald | An action plan has been prepared 31/03/
continue to realise to address the improvements 2003
improvements in the required in financial control within
system of budgetary Education. This is a much wider
control and ensure issue than that identified by PWC.
that monitoring of the The action plan is currently being
financial position is progressed by an augmented
actively carried out on finance team for Education. A
a frequent and regular monitoring group of members and
basis. senior  officials  has  been

o established to review progress
Priority: High against the action plan. The Group
is reporting progress to the
Strategic Policy Committee. The
action plan continues until March
2003
OCTOBER 2002 PAGE 4 AUDIT SERVICES-AUDIT SCOTLAND




ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL 2001/2002

Page 41

MANAGEMENT REPORT — REGULARITY & GOVERNANCE SECTION 2
Page/ | No | Recommendation Responsible | Action Date
Para Officer
Ref

Building
Maintenance DLO
12/21 | 8 Management should | A.Law There has been continual pressure | October
ensure that systems on DLO Management staff to use 2002 —
provide reliable information available to them and
management a long-delayed computer
information and that enhancement was completed in
all efforts are made to September this year.
.reduce levels of work Issues around reducing Work in March
1N progress. Progress are continually re- 2003
Priority: High inforced with line management
and this will continue to be
pressed over the remainder of this
year
12/21 | 9 Information presented | A.Law This is done — previous report of | Ongoing
to the Commercial 29/8/2002 and intended one of
Operations Board 21/11/2002
should accurately
reflect the true current
position and potential
position of the DLO.
Priority: Medium
12/22 | 10 | Management should | A.Law This has been actioned in terms of | Ongoing
ensure that the costing any ad hoc work bid for and the
and pricing of revision to the Term Maintenance
potential  work is Contracts has been done with the
realistic to achieve the DLO seeking to pursue reward
desired rate of return. levels sufficient to allow their
Priority: High statutory return to be made
13/23 | 11 | Management should | A.Law This is being done — monthly | Ongoing
continue to monitor Management Accounts considered
closely the financial and copied to senior members of
performance of the the Council.
DLO.
Priority: High Weekly staff productivity records
and overtime sheets also reviewed
by line management and Head of
Service
OCTOBER 2002 PAGE 5 AUDIT SERVICES-AUDIT SCOTLAND




ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL 2001/2002
MANAGEMENT REPORT — REGULARITY & GOVERNANCE

Page 42

SECTION 2

Page/
Para
Ref

No

Recommendation

Responsible
Officer

Action

Date

Unified Benefits
System

13/25

12

The Benefits
Procedure Manual
should be updated to
cover the procedures
to be followed by staff
when processing their
own benefit
applications or those
of  relatives  and
friends, dealing with
backdated
applications and
investigating the non-
return  of  review
forms.

Priority: Medium

J. Preston

Agreed

Feb 2003

13/26

13

For cases where
review forms are not
returned
investigations should
be performed to
establish whether
benefit has been
overpaid.

Priority: Medium

J. Preston

Assess if resources can be made
available for this to be carried out.

March
2003

13/27

14

The Benefits System
should be reconciled
with the financial
ledger on a monthly
basis.

Priority: High

J. Preston

Agreed

November
2002

13/28

15

Consideration should
be given to
standardising the
rotation of staff duties
across all area offices.

Priority: Medium

J. Preston

Matter will be considered

Feb 2003

OCTOBER 2002

PAGE 6

AUDIT SERVICES-AUDIT SCOTLAND




ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL 2001/2002
MANAGEMENT REPORT — REGULARITY & GOVERNANCE

Page 43

SECTION 2

Page/
Para
Ref

No

Recommendation

Responsible
Officer

Action

Date

14/29

16

Consideration should
be given to
conducting a data
matching exercise for
all Council
employees.

Priority: Medium

J. Preston

Assess feasibility with Corporate
Personnel and Payroll.

Jan 2003

14/30

17

Every effort should be
made to improve
communication  and
co-ordination between
departments with
regard to benefit fraud
investigations.

Priority: Medium

J. Preston/ K.
MacLeod

Agreed

November
2003

14/31

18

The Council should
confirm whether the
requirements of the
Verification
Framework
applicable  to
Council.

remain
the

Priority: Medium

J. Preston

Agreed

November
2003

14/32

19

The duties and
responsibilities for the
preparation of the
annual benefits
subsidy claim should
be clearly defined.

Priority: Medium

B. West/D.
MacVicar

Management felt that
responsibility for preparation of
the claim was clear. However in
the light of this comment the
responsibility for preparation of
the claim will be re emphasised to
those involved in the preparation.

March
2003

OCTOBER 2002

PAGE 7

AUDIT SERVICES-AUDIT SCOTLAND




Page 44

ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL 2001/2002

MANAGEMENT REPORT — REGULARITY & GOVERNANCE SECTION 3
INTRODUCTION
1. We conduct our audit in accordance with Audit Scotland’s Code of Audit Practice,

which requires us to consider the corporate governance arrangements in place as they
relate to the systems of internal control. The Code makes clear that it is the
responsibility of management to ensure that internal control systems are appropriate.

2. As part of our 2001/2002 audit activity, a review was undertaken of a number of the
systems in place within the Council, specifically budgetary control within the
Education Department, Unified Benefits and a high level review of DLOs and DSOs.
We employed an approach which involved evaluating the internal control system by
selecting key controls and testing that they operated satisfactorily.

3. In addition, we took the opportunity to follow up the findings of 4 Job Worth Doing,
the 2001 report on raising the standard of internal audit in Scottish councils, which
resulted in a detailed action plan to improve the service at Argyll & Bute Council. We
also assessed the Council’s corporate governance arrangements and arrangements in
place to prevent and detect fraud and corruption.

4. This report summarises the findings from our review and, where appropriate, makes
recommendations to address any weaknesses identified. It should be noted that
communication of weaknesses does not absolve management from its responsibility
for the maintenance of an adequate system of control. The Action Plan included in
Section 2 of this report sets out the agreed action to be taken in response to the main
recommendations, graded to show their relative priority, and the timescales within
which the issues are to be addressed. The Action Plan should be read in conjunction
with the relevant reference from the main findings (Section 4).

5. It should be understood that weaknesses highlighted in this report are only those that
have come to our attention during normal audit work in accordance with the Code of
Audit Practice and therefore are not necessarily all of the weaknesses that may exist.

6. The factual accuracy of the content of this report, and the remedial action to be taken,
has been agreed in discussion with appropriate officials.

7. The co-operation and assistance afforded to audit staff during the course of the review
are gratefully acknowledged.

OCTOBER 2002 PAGE 8 AUDIT SERVICES-AUDIT SCOTLAND



Page 45

ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL 2001/2002

MANAGEMENT REPORT — REGULARITY & GOVERNANCE SECTION 4
MAIN FINDINGS

Internal Audit

Introduction

1. In A Job Worth Doing, the 2001 report on raising the standard of internal audit in

Scottish councils, Argyll & Bute Council was assessed in band 4 (the lowest band) on
compliance with the CIPFA Code of Practice for Internal Audit (below 50%
compliance). PricewaterhouseCoopers, the Council’s external auditors, produced a local
report which incorporated a detailed action plan to introduce the range of improvements
required. The action plan contained 27 individual recommendations.

Following this report the Council chose to seek a suitable partner to establish an internal
audit partnership. Following a tender exercise KPMG were appointed to provide 390
days over a three year period at a cost of £225,000. As part of our 2001/02 audit we
have assessed the progress made by Internal Audit since the 4 Job Worth Doing report
and the commencement of the partnership with KPMG.

Since their appointment in February 2002, KPMG have been involved in preparing a
risk-based audit needs assessment, a three year strategic internal audit plan, and annual
plans for the period. KPMG also provided advice on the format of Internal Audit’s
annual assurance statement and proposed performance indicators for the Internal Audit
service. The strategic plan reflects the results of the audit needs assessment exercise and
provides a detailed schedule of assignments covering a range of systems, both financial
and non-financial, operating within the Council. The annual plans include time for
follow-up reviews to assess progress on implementing agreed recommendations, value
for money reviews, dedicated computer audit reviews, and coverage of best value
reviews and performance indicators. A contingency allowance is included also to cater
for special investigations.

In our view, the audit needs assessment employed sound methodology and the strategic
plan provides an appropriate basis for internal audit to provide an objective assessment
of the adequacy, reliability and effectiveness of the Council’s internal control systems.

Audit Findings

Progress in implementing action plan points

5.

Progress against the action plan points has been good, although there are still some areas
where improvements have yet to be realised. Appropriate training has yet to be agreed
and delivered (point 3.41 in action plan), the introduction of the latest technology has
still to be considered (point 3.49), and formats for files, reports and working papers have
still to be finalised (point 3.43).

Refer action plan no.1

OCTOBER 2002 PAGE 9 AUDIT SERVICES-AUDIT SCOTLAND



Page 46

ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL 2001/2002
MANAGEMENT REPORT — REGULARITY & GOVERNANCE SECTION 4

2001/02 Internal Audit coverage

6.

Internal audit’s work for 2001/02 was reported to the Audit Committee on 26 July 2002.
The section suffered from staffing difficulties during the year and five planned reviews
were deferred. We note that 279 days, some 29% of the total days delivered, were spent
on three areas, namely year-end stock taking (88 days), the housing benefit grant claim
(45 days) and performance indicators (146 days). Although the majority of this work
was performed by more junior staff, the time spent on these areas appears excessive.
The plan for 2002/03 envisages much less time being spent on such activities.

Refer action plan no.2

Historically the Internal Audit Manager has had responsibility for the Council’s fraud
officers and has spent a fair proportion of time managing and performing benefit fraud
investigations. Such work was never part of the Internal Audit plan and there is a risk
that continuing input may distract the section from delivering its core service. We
understand that a fraud manager has recently been appointed, and that for the remainder
of 2002/03 little input will be required from the Internal Audit Manager.

Refer action plan no.3

Staffing and Organisation

8.

Internal Audit suffered from a shortage of resources during 2001/02 and two members
of staff were recruited in July 2002. We note that the strategic plan is based on six full-
time members of staff whilst currently one member of staff works for only three days a
week. The section now comprises two internal audit managers one of whom is
designated as the lead, two accountants and two audit assistants. The current structure
may not be the most appropriate and there may remain a lack of clarity around lines of
accountability and reporting.

Refer action plan no.4

2002/03 Plan

9.

10.

The current estimate is for 805 days direct audit work in comparison with the original
estimate of 970 days. The shortfall arises from internal audit being under complement
until August 2002. The plan is for coverage of those areas assessed with the lowest
priority ranking in the Audit Needs Assessment to be deferred if necessary. This is a
sensible approach to minimise the effect of the shortfall in planned days. However, we
understand that the 970 days was based on six full-time members of staff, whilst one
member of staff works for only three days a week. Therefore, a risk exists that the
planned work for 2002/03 will not be completed substantially.

Refer action plan no.2

Of the 140 days that KMPG will provide, only 25 days are scheduled to be on direct
audit work, being 10 days on IT/MIS strategy and controls (computer audit) and 15 days
on Value For Money. The total planned for IT/MIS is 30 days. This appears to be a
relatively low number of days given the reliance placed by the Council on IT systems.
This is one particular area where on the job coaching and skills transfer by KPMG
specialist(s) could be of benefit to the Council.

Refer action plan no.5

OCTOBER 2002 PAGE 10 AUDIT SERVICES-AUDIT SCOTLAND



Page 47

ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL 2001/2002
MANAGEMENT REPORT — REGULARITY & GOVERNANCE SECTION 4

Independence of Internal Audit

11.

The CIPFA Code of Practice for Internal Audit sets out the importance of the
independence of Internal Audit. At Argyll and Bute, Internal Audit cannot be said to be
truly independent of line management. In practice, Internal Audit report to the Head of
Accounting, who is responsible for many of the systems that Internal Audit will
scrutinise. This may lead to an element of conflict. It may be more appropriate for
Internal Audit to report directly to the Director of Finance with direct access to the
Chairman of the Audit Committee.

Refer action plan no.6

Budgetary Control - Education Department

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

During 2001/02 it became apparent that budgetary control within the Education
Department was not operating effectively and that there was a possibility that the
Department would overspend its budget for 2001/02. The Director of Finance requested
that KPMG perform a review to examine financial control within the Education
Department. KPMG highlighted a number of areas where financial control systems
were unreliable and commented that the process employed to prepare income and
expenditure projections was not sufficiently detailed and robust. Recommendations
were included in a detailed action plan to improve controls within the Education
Department. In February 2002, in a follow-up report, KPMG concluded that they were
unable to form a conclusion on the accuracy of the estimated projections of the year-end
position.

One of the problems identified by KPMG was that budgetary information held in the
Education Delegated Management of Resources (DMR) system and the main financial
system, ORACLE, was not consistent and had not been reconciled regularly.

On 4 February 2002, the Education Finance Monitoring Group decided that all non-
essential education expenditure should be stopped with immediate effect, in view of the
uncertainty remaining on the financial outturn for the year. The Strategic Policy
Committee at its meeting on 21 February 2002 transferred financial control from the
Education Department to the Director of Finance.

The overspend on Education for 2001/02 totalled £0.691 million having been reduced
by £200,000 and was achieved by reducing the Education capital budget and allowing
Transportation and Property Services to transfer expenditure from revenue to capital.

It should be noted that the external auditors raised concerns about the budget setting and
budget monitoring processes during both 1999/2000 and 2000/01. In their interim
management letter for 2000/01, external audit reported that information submitted to the
Education Committee was insufficient to allow an understanding of the individual
factors which impact upon the variances arising. In addition, external audit commented
that the budget had not been appropriately phased throughout the year which increased
the complexity of departmental monitoring and variance reporting.

OCTOBER 2002 PAGE 11 AUDIT SERVICES-AUDIT SCOTLAND



Page 48

ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL 2001/2002
MANAGEMENT REPORT — REGULARITY & GOVERNANCE SECTION 4

17.

18.

A dedicated finance team based within the Education Department was set up in
November 2001 to introduce improvements in budgetary control and to progress the
agreed actions in the KPMG action plan. This team has reported regularly to the
Education Finance Working Group and has revised the approach to budget monitoring
and reporting. It has been considered necessary to examine variances at a lower level
than those examined in other departments. All Education budget holders are now
required to provide explanations for variances at account code level of the lower of 5%
or £5,000 (but greater than £500). This should provide greater control and also
encourage budget holders to take ownership of their budgets and become fully involved
in the financial monitoring process.

The team have completed a detailed costing exercise and revenue budget for 2002/03.
This indicated that the funds required to deliver the Education Service are approximately
£1.3 million more than the approved estimate. As a result the Strategic Policy
Committee, on 29 August 2002, approved a savings plan totalling £1.1 million and a
decision was taken to establish a core scrutiny team to undertake a thorough review of
the service costs and delivery.

Refer action plan no.7

Building Maintenance DLO

19.

20.

21.

22.

As reported in the 2001/02 annual accounts, the Building Maintenance DLO incurred a
deficit of £85,000. Income for the year increased by £477,000 to £3.6 million with a
corresponding increase in expenditure of £583,000.

Management accounts for DLOs and DSOs are prepared on a monthly basis, with
formal financial monitoring meetings attended by the Chief Executive and the Director
of Finance being held quarterly. The Council’s Commercial Operations Board oversees
the activities of the DLOs and DSOs.

The monitoring meeting held on 30 October 2001 projected a surplus position for all
DSOs and DLOs at 31 March 2002. However, the management accounts to 30
September 2001 disclosed a work in progress balance of £800,000 for building
maintenance and before the meeting on 30 October, a review was instigated which
revealed that a number of jobs were being disputed and that other jobs were reported as
completed but had not been invoiced. Nevertheless, the Commercial Operations Board,
at their meeting on 15 November 2001 were informed that all DLOs and DSOs were in
a relatively healthy position as at 30 September and on target to make the necessary rate
of return by the end of the financial year.

Refer action plan no.8 and 9

A review of the Building Maintenance DLO’s activities identified that the deficit arose
mainly from individual schemes, which are separately tendered work, where the actual
volume was higher than anticipated and subsequently did not achieve a reasonable
overall return. The costing system proved not to be particularly effective which led to
pricing being too tight, and ongoing cost control measures were insufficiently robust.
We understand that the DLO experienced internal reorganisation during the year and
key staff turnover which may have contributed to the problems encountered.

Refer action plan no.10

OCTOBER 2002 PAGE 12 AUDIT SERVICES-AUDIT SCOTLAND



Page 49

ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL 2001/2002
MANAGEMENT REPORT — REGULARITY & GOVERNANCE SECTION 4

23. Action has been instigated to reverse the situation including the preparation of an
updated business plan. During the first three months of 2002/03 a loss of £174,000 was
incurred. This deficit position may prove difficult to overturn by the end of the financial
year.

Refer action plan no.11

Unified Benefits System
Introduction

24. Our review of the Unified Benefits system covered specifically procedures relating to
the processing of:

. Council Tax Benefit claims for owner occupiers (administered at Campbeltown)
and for tenants processed by the Campbeltown and Dunoon offices; and

. Housing Benefit claims.

Audit Findings

25. We noted that the Council complies with accepted good practice and has issued a
revised Benefits Procedure Manual in July 2002 to all staff involved in the processing of
all benefit claims. However, our review of the Manual identified that it does not cover
the procedures to be followed by staff when processing their own benefit applications or
those of relatives and friends, dealing with backdated applications or investigating the
non-return of review forms.

Refer action plan no.12

26. Housing and Council Tax Benefit claimants not returning review forms are not followed
up after a reminder is sent out. Benefit is withdrawn from the review date and no
attempt is made to determine when entitlement to the benefit ceased in these instances.
Therefore no steps are taken to assess the amount of the potential overpayment.

Refer action plan no.13

27. The Benefits System is only reconciled with the financial ledger on a yearly basis at the
financial year end. This increases the risk that material errors remain unidentified
throughout the year.

Refer action plan no.14

28. Our review noted that the Oban area office has a workload rotation list for members of
staff. Audit enquiry noted that staff feel that the benefits of such a system includes the
identification of training needs, an increase in staff motivation and a reduction in the
backlog of work in some areas of responsibility. Other area offices do not have such a
system in place, with the workload in the Dunoon and Helensburgh area offices being
split alphabetically. We understand that this may be creating difficulties where the
workload is not split evenly amongst staff. We identified that no work rota exists in the
Helensburgh office.

Refer action plan no.15

OCTOBER 2002 PAGE 13 AUDIT SERVICES-AUDIT SCOTLAND



Page 50

ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL 2001/2002
MANAGEMENT REPORT — REGULARITY & GOVERNANCE SECTION 4

29.

30.

31.

32.

Although a data matching exercise was carried out by the Council in consultation with
the Department of Work and Pensions (DWP) in 2000/2001 for manual and cleaning
staff, no such exercise has been carried out for all other Council employees to identify
staff who may be fraudulently claiming benefits.

Refer action plan no.16

With regard to benefit fraud investigation procedures, audit enquiry identified the
following:

e  the poor quality of information on some referral forms meant that fraud officers
were unable to proceed further with the investigation. There appears to be a
breakdown of communication between fraud officers, verification officers and
benefits staff; and

. the documentation used by Fraud Officers when investigating cases of alleged
fraud, e.g. documentation of interviews, may not be legally sufficient if a case
were to be sent to the Procurator Fiscal for prosecution.

Refer action plan no.17

The Verification Framework control sheet records the information required to be
submitted by benefit claimants as evidence of their entitlement to benefit and to meet the
requirements of the Verification Framework. Audit testing identified that this form was
located in most of the files checked at the Oban area office for the claim prior to the
current claim. However, we noted that benefits staff at the Helensburgh area office no
longer use this form. The Benefits Manager is of the belief that the rules for the
Verification Framework have been relaxed and it may be no longer mandatory
requirement to provide this type of evidence.

Refer action plan no.18

The Internal Audit report on the Unified Benefits System issued in February 2002 stated
that the officer responsible for completing the annual benefits subsidy claim was unsure
of his precise responsibilities and duties with regard to the preparation of the claim. The
report recommended that the Internal Audit Manager prepare a paper which clearly
specifies various duties and responsibilities for the preparation and checking of the
subsidy claim. Audit enquiry noted that Internal Audit Manager did not understand why
he was the responsible officer for preparing such a paper, and as such the
recommendation remains outstanding.

Refer action plan no.19

Corporate Governance

33.

We performed an overview of the Council’s corporate governance arrangements using a
standard checklist approach. We are pleased to note that most of the elements necessary
to ensure that the Council applies the three fundamental principles of corporate
governance, openness, integrity and accountability, are in place. These include:

. Codes of Conduct for Councillors and for Employees;
. A Scheme of Administration and Delegations; and

e A risk management policy and strategy in place and Risk Management Group
prepare annual report.

OCTOBER 2002 PAGE 14 AUDIT SERVICES-AUDIT SCOTLAND



Page 51

ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL 2001/2002
MANAGEMENT REPORT — REGULARITY & GOVERNANCE SECTION 4

Fraud and Corruption

34. The Council has the responsibility to establish arrangements to prevent and detect fraud
and corruption. As part of this year’s audit we considered the adequacy of these
arrangements using a standard checklist approach. Overall we found a number of good
practices including the following:

. An “anti-fraud and anti-corruption” strategy which advises and guides members
and staff on the Council’s approach to the serious issues of fraud and corruption;

. A “fraud response plan” which outlines the procedures for reporting suspected
fraud or corruption and how the Council will deal with such complaints;

e A “whistle blowing” policy that is consistent with the provisions of the Public
Interest Disclosure Act 1998; and

e In relation to housing and council tax benefit, the Council has documented
procedures for the prevention and detection of fraud and for the investigation of
fraudulent claims.

OCTOBER 2002 PAGE 15 AUDIT SERVICES-AUDIT SCOTLAND



Page 52

ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL - 2001/2001
MANAGEMENT REPORT — REGULARITY & GOVERNANCE SECTION 5

CONCLUSION

1.  We have highlighted a number of areas where the Council has reacted and taken steps to
improve control and oversight. We judge the action taken to be generally appropriate
and have recommended that planned improvements are continued. The matters which
we have raised in this report are designed to add to the existing system of internal
control.

OCTOBER 2002 PAGE 16 AUDIT SERVICES-AUDIT SCOTLAND



Page 53
Appendix 4

2001/2002 final report on the audit of

Argyll & Bute Council

David McConnell, MA CPFA — Chief Auditor, Audit Scotland
7th Floor, Plaza Tower, East Kilbride, G74 1LW
T 01355619200 F 01355 619201

NB: The corruplion error message is believed to relate to the contents page format but otherwise the
document does not seem to be affected.



Page 54

DAVID MCCONNELL MA CPFA CHIEF AUDITOR
7T FLOCR PLAZATOWER
GLASGOW G74 1LW

T 01355 619200 F 01355 619201

Convenor and Members 31 October 2002
Argyll & Bute Council

Headquarters

Kilmory

LOCHGILPHEAD

PA31 8RT

Controller of Audit
EDINBURGH

Ladies and Gentlemen

Report on the Audit for the year ended 31 March 2002

I have now completed my audit of the Council’s Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2002.

As part of my responsibilities as external auditor to the Council I am required to submit, at the
conclusion of each year’s audit, a report addressed both to Members of the Council and to the

Controller of Audit. I have pleasure in attaching my report on the Council’s audit for the year to 31
March 2002.

This report aims to summarise all significant matters which have arisen during the course of the audit
and which I feel are worthy of Members’ attention.

I should like to take this opportunity to thank those officers who have assisted my staff in the course
of the audit.

Yours faithfully

David McConnell
Chief Auditor

Encs



Page 55

Argyll & Bute Council
Report on the 2001/2002 Audit CONTENTS
Contents
Section 1 1
Executive Summary
Section 2 2
Infroduction
Section 3 3
Financial statements and related matters
¢+ Introduction
¢ Auditor’s report
+ Matters from previous years
¢ Financial position
¢ Issues arising
¢ Otherissues
Section 4 9
Governance
+ Matters from previous years
4 Systems of internal control
¢ |nformation and
communications technology
(ICT) audit
¢ Fraud and corruption
¢ Internal audit
+ Corporate governance
arrangements
¢ Legality issues
Section 5 16

Performance Management

Section 6

* &

Matters from previous years
Centrally directed studies
Performance management
and planning (PMP)
Statutory performance
indicators

23

Concluding remarks

Appendix A

24

31 OCTOBER 2002

AUDIT SERVICES — AUDIT SCOTLAND



Page 56

Argyll & Bute Council
Report on the 2001/2002 Audit Section 1

Executive Summary

Introduction

This report summarises the auditor’s main responsibilities and duties and draws the attention
of members to the range of matters emerging from the audit of the Council for the year to
31 March 2002.

Financial Statements and Related Matters

There are no qualifications to my audit report in that [ am able to conclude that the Council’s
financial statements present fairly its financial position as at 31 March 2002. However, my
audit report highlights the fatlure of the Property Maintenance Direct Labour Organisation to
meet its prescribed financial objective. I have also provided an audit opinion for the Council’s
Direct Labour Organisations and Direct Service Organisations and can confirm that the
prescribed financial objective has been achieved for each description of work and defined
activity, with the exception of the Property Maintenance DLO.

Governance and Regularity

As part of the 2001/02 audit, a number of systems were reviewed including main accounting,
payment of creditors, unified benefits and payroll. We also undertook follow-up audits of the
main financial systems and departmental systems reviewed in previous years. Our systems
audit work is designed to help ensure that appropriate levels of control are in place. We also
carried out overviews of the Council’s internal audit service and of its procedures for the
prevention and detection of fraud and corruption. A standard checklist approach was used in
gach case. Additionally, we carried out an overview of the Council’s corporafe governance
arrangements.

Performance Management

Part of the auditor’s statutory responsibilities is to be satisfied that the Council has made
appropriate arrangements to secure value for money from its available resources. The main
elements of the performance audit work carried out as part of the 2001/2002 audit included an
exercise on managing pre-school education (including grant arrangements), a review of the
trading standards service and follow-up reviews of property risk management in schools and
benchmarking internal audit.

31 OCTOBER 2002 PAGE 1 AUDIT SERVICES — AUDIT SCOTLAND



Page 57

Argyll & Bute Council
Report on the 2001/2002 Audit Section 2
Introduction

1. It may be helpful to members to summarise my main responsibilities

and duties and the way in which [ approach the conduct of the audit.

My responsibilities and duties as auditor derive from the Local
Government (Scotland) Act 1973. These responsibilities and duties
are summarised in the Audit Scotland Code of Audit Practice which
sets out the auditor’s objectives as being to review and report on:

¢ the Council’s corporate governance arrangements as they relate to
- the systems of internal control

- the regularity of transactions, and the prevention and
detection of fraud and irregularity

- standards of conduct and prevention and detection of
corruption

- its financial position;

+ aspects of the Council’s arrangements to manage its performance,
as they relate {o economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use
of resources, and the publication of specified performance
information;

¢ the Council’s financial statements,

Accordingly, I have significantly wider responsibilities than would be
expected of external auditors in the private sector. This report on the
2001/2002 audit is a summary of audit activity for the year, and
reflects those wider responsibilities.

This repott requires to be considered in the context of the stewardship
responsibilities of the management of the Council. As the Audit
Scotland Code of Audit Practice makes clear:

“The prime responsibility for ensuring both that public business is
conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards and that
public money is handled with absolute integrity and spent appropriately
rests with the members and officials. To discharge this accountability,
public bodies and those responsible for the conduct of their affairs
require to establish and maintain proper arrangements for the
governance of their affairs and the stewardship of resources at their
disposal,”

The key issues arising from the audit, which require action by the
Council, are set out in the Action Plan included as an appendix to this
report.

31 OCTOBER 2002

PAGE 2 AUDIT SERVICES — AUDIT SCOTLAND



Argyll & Bute Council

Page 58

Report on the 2001/2002 Audit Section 3

Financial statements and related matters

* introduction

Auditor's report

Matters from previous years
Financial position

Issues arising

Other issues

* > > > 0

Introduction

Auditor’s report

4.

The financial statements of the Council are an essential means by
which it accounts for its stewardship of the resources made available
to it and its financial performance in the use of those resources. The
management of the Council is responsible for the preparation of the
accounts, which present fairly its financial position and the income
and expenditure for the year.

I am required to place an auditor’s report on the financial statements,
which contains my opinion as to whether the Council has fulfilled this
responsibility.

I am also required to consider whether the Council has established
adequate arrangements to ensure that its financial position is soundly
based.

There are no qualifications to my audit report as, in my opinion, the
Council’s accounts present fairly its financial position as at 31 March
2002 and its income and expenditure for the year. However, my audit
report highlights a failure to comply with a statutory requirement, in
that the Property Maintenance Direct Labour Organisation did not
meet its prescribed financial objective. This matter is discussed
further at paragraph 12 of Section 4 of this report.

I have also provided an audit opinion on the Council’s Direct Labour
Organisations and Direct Service Organisations and can confirm that,
with the exception of the Property Maintenance DLO, the prescribed
financial objective has been achieved for each description of work and
defined activity.

It should be noted that the auditor’s report included in the financial
statements document does not, in the year under audit, refer to the
statement on corporate governance arrangements.

31 OCTOBER 2002

PAGE 3 AUDIT SERVICES — AUDIT SCOTLAND



Argyll & Bute Council

Page 59

Report on the 2001/2002 Audit Section 3

Matters from previous years

7.

10.

A number of action plan points were included in the 2000/2001 Report
to Members. 1 have summarised below those significant issues that I
would draw to the attention of members.

Central support recharges. The Council had agreed, in response to
the previous auditor’s comments, to consider automating the central
support recharge process further, in order to improve the timely
allocation of overhead charges during the 2001/2002 financial year.
During our audit of the 2001/2002 annual accounts we noted that the
agreed action had not been implemented although work was being
progressed. We understand that the Logotech time recording system is
now being implemented within the majority of the Council’s Central
Support Departments, i.e. Corporate and Legal, Finance, Personnel
and Information Technology. The information generated from this
exercise will be used to produce the central support recharge
allocations for 2002/2003 financial year. Auditors will continue to
monitor progress in this area.

Performance indicators. The Council had agreed that cach
department would report on the action proposed to address the issues
identified by external audit with regard to the 2000/2001 Performance
Indicators to the Strategic Policy Committee/Audit Committee by
31 December 2001. We noted that no such reports have been
presented as yet to the Strategic Policy Committee/Audit Committee.
Auditors will continue to monitor progress in this area.

Implementation of the 2000/2001 action plan. Our audit work also
included a review of the Council’s progress in implementing the
action plan contained in the previous year’s final report. We can
confirm that action has been taken to address issues raised in last
year’s report and this includes:

¢+ a ‘whistleblowing’ procedure has been introduced as part of the
Council’s Public Interest Disclosure Policy;

¢ Internal Audit follow up all internal and external audit report
recommendations and progress reports with regard to
implementation of these recommendations are presented regularly
to the Audit Committee.

31 QcroBER 2002

PAGE 4 AUDIT SERVICES — AUDIT SCOTLAND



Argyll & Bute Council

Page 60

Report on the 2001/2002 Audit Section 3

Financial position

11.

12,

13.

The Report by the Director of Finance, which prefaces the Annual
Report and Accounts, indicates that the revenue budget was set such
that the authority would end the year in a break even position. During
the course of the year, the Council decided to undertake additional
work on housing, funded from carry forward Housing Revenue
Account (HRA) balances, and the accounts therefore disclose an
actual deficit of £0.490million on the HRA. The surplus on other
services is £0.402m. The HRA deficit is set against accumulated
surpluses, leaving funds to be used in future years to contribute to the
Housing Capital Programme. The General Fund surplus has been
added to the surplus brought forward from the previous year of
£0.085m; the total of £0.487m has been carried forward to financial
year 2002/2003.

The Report by the Director of Finance also discloses that, within
Education Services, expenditure exceeded budget by £0.691m. Two
reports submitted by the Director of Finance to the Council and the
Strategic Policy Committee on 27 June 2002 and 15 August 2002
respectively, give further details of Education Services overspend in
2001/2002. Both reports show that Education Services” actual
expenditure exceeded budget by £0.891m.

The difference of £0.200m is due to the fact that Education Services
deferred £0.200m of capital expenditure to future years and transferred
£0.200m of capital consent in 2001/2002 to Roads and Transportation
Services. Consequent adjustments by Roads and Transportation
Services effectively increased its surplus by £0.200m against the
original revenue budget. As this £0.200m of additional Roads and
Transportation Services surplus was generated by Education Services
transferring its capital consent to Roads and Transportation Services,
the Director of Finance is of the opinion that this £0.200m of
additional surplus can be taken against Education Services deficit of
£0.891m to reduce it to £0.691m.

31 OcToBER 2002

PAGE 5 AUDIT SERVICES — AUDIT SCOTLAND



Page 61

Argyll & Bute Council
Report on the 2001/2002 Audit Section 3
14. Due to the identification of concemns over the budgetary position

Issues arising

15.

16.

17.

within the Education Department, a dedicated finance team, based
within the Education Department, was set up in November 2001 to
introduce improvements in budgetary control. This team has reported
regularly to the Education Finance Working Group and has revised the
approach to budget monitoring and reporting. It has been considered
necessary to examine variances at a lower level than those examined
in other departments; all Education budget holders will be required to
provide explanations for variances at account code level of the lower
of 5% or £5,000 (but greater than £500). The authority consider that
this should provide greater control and also encourage budget holders
to take ownership of their budgets and become fully involved in the
financial monitoring process. The issue of budgetary conirol within
the department has clearly been a cause for concern, both in itself, and
in the context of similar issues occurring elsewhere in Scottish Local
Government. This is an area which will be subject to review by
external audit in 2002/2003.

Capital expenditure in 2001/2002 amounted to £19.103million;
£3.349million was invested in the council housing stock, renewing
roofs, heating, windows, improving thermal efficiency. General
services capital expenditure of £15.754million is spread over all the
services in Argyll & Bute. Capital expenditure is funded from cash
generated from the sale of assets, revenue contributions, grants from
various funding bodies, and from borrowing.

A number of issucs arose¢ during the course of the audit of the
Council’s accounts, which were resolved in discussion or have been
separately reported to officers. These include such matters as non-
compliance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting
in the United Kingdom (ACOP). This is an established part of the
audit process in respect of which detailed reporting to members’ is not
considered appropriate. There are, however, certain issues that I
would draw to members’ attention.

Waste Management — Public Private Partnership. One of the most
significant transactions in the year involved the Council entering into a
Public Private Partnership (PPP) to meet the Council’s long term
waste disposal needs. The contract was signed in September 2001 and
the agreement will operate until September 2026. As part of the
arrangement, three waste disposal sites, two transfer stations and five
civic amenity sites were leased to the project’s external provider for
the duration of the agreement. The PPP scheme has been assessed by
the authority’s financial advisers as warranting an off-balance sheet
accounting treatment and I have confirmed that the process followed
to determine whether the Council should account for the transaction
on or off its balance sheet was in accordance with the current
underlying guidance.

31 OcroBER 2002

PAGE G AUDIT SERVICES — AUDIT SCOTLAND



Page 62

Argyll & Bute Council
Report on the 2001/2002 Audit Section 3
18. The Council has not yet recognized, in 2001/2002, any level of

19.

20.

21,

22,

acquisition of the final residual value of the assets which will revert to
the Council at the end of the agreement. It is my view that such
adjustments would be required. However, the amounts involved for
the first part year of the agreement, from September 2001, are not
considered to be material in the context of the accounts, and I note that
the Council is to consider recognising these transactions from
2002/2003. Auditors will continue to review the operation of this
significant arrangement.

Central support recharges. As noted in the ‘matters from previous
years’ section, the Council is currently automating the process
followed when calculating the year end central support service
recharge allocations, the results of which will be reflected in the
2002/2003 Annual Accounts.

The 2001/2002 year end central support service recharge aliocations
were calculated on the basis of percentages calculated for 2001/02
revenue budget setting exercise. The percentages used were calculated
from information generated during the service level agreement (SLA)
exercise up to September 2000. This involved calculating the level of
charges which would be due under each SLA and totalling these by
user department for each of the central departments and then
expressing the resulting user depariment total as a percentage of the
total support service charge income for the relevant central
department. The resulting percentages were then applied to the net
cost of the central department to derive the actual charge. This
process 1s somewhat complex.

Our audit work identified that, in 2001/02, approximately £252,000 of
Finance Department costs were recharged to the Local Tax Collection
service. However, the Head of Accounting noted that this charge was
unrealistic and that Local Tax Collection should be recharged only a
small amount of central Finance Department costs. This highlights the
inaccuracies of the methodology used to calculate the year end central
support service recharge allocations. Although, these inaccuracies
would not affect the reported surplus for 2001/2002, they may impact
upon the net expenditure amounts reported for each Council service.

In addition, any inaccuracies in the central support service recharge
may impact upon the DLOs/DSOs accounts which are allocated a
proportion of the costs recharged to the appropriate client service.
Audit testing also identified that the methodology used to apportion
central support service recharges to the individual DLOs and DSOs is
not wholly robust. Auditors will continue to monitor progress with
regard to the automation of central support service recharge
allocations,

31 OCTOBER 2002

PAGE 7 AUDIT SERVICES — AUDIT SCOTLAND



Argyll & Bute Council

Page 63

Report on the 2001/2002 Audit Section 3

Other issues

23.

24,

25,

20.

Fixed assets. CIPFA’s Best Value Accounting Code of Practice 2001
(Annex B — Paragraph B12) indicates that capital charges on non-
operational assets should not be charged to service revenue accounts,
as by definition, no service is making use of the assets. However,
approximately £368,000 of capital charges in respect of non-
operational assets were charged to service revenue accounts in
2001/2002. This is due to the fact that service revenue accounts are
receiving income for these non-operational buildings which are leased
to external parties and, as such, receive the capital charge for deriving
benefit from the use of the asset.

Paragraph 4.190 of the guidance notes for Code of Practice on Local
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (ACOP) states that
‘Assets should not be included as non-operational where they are
contributing to the achievement of one or more of the authority’s
policy objectives for a service.” | have agreed with the Director of
Finance that non-operational assets which are leased to external parties
will be reviewed next year to assess whether these assets are
contributing to the achievement of one or more of the Council’s policy
objectives for a service. If any assets are deemed to be contributing to
the achievement of one or more of the Council’s policy objectives for
a service, they should be classified as operational.

Future funding of housing. The Council commissioned external
consultants — DTZ Pieda — to identify the options available to it for the
management and maintenance of its housing stock. One of the options
identified was the use of a housing stock transfer. It is the Council’s
intention that tenants would be fully consulted before deciding to
progress the matter further. T will continue to note developments in
this area.

FRS 17 Retirement Benefits. The Council agreed in response to the
2000/01 Final Report by the auditors to ensure that procedures would
be implemented in readiness for the application of the Financial
Reporting Standard 17 — Retirement Benefits in future years. I noted
from my audit of the 2001/02 annual accounts that the Council has
complied with the disclosure requirements of ACOP, which includes
the requirement to include a note to the Consolidated Balance Sheet
disclosing the Council’s net asset/liability, in respect of its share in the
Strathelyde Pension Fund. The CIPFA/LASAAC Joint Committee is
proposing that the requirements of FRS 17 will be incorporated fully
into ACOP by the 2003/2004 financial year. I will continue to
monitor the Council’s compliance with the disclosure requirements of
ACOP in this area.

31 OCTOBER 2002

PAGE 8 AUDIT SERVICES — AUDIT SCOTLAND



Argyll & Bute Council

Page 64

Report on the 2001/2002 Audit Section 4

Governance

Matters from previous years

Systems of internal control

ICT audit

Fraud and corruption

arrangements

Internal audit

] Corporate governance
arrangements

¢ Legality issues

* * > @

<>

Corporate governance 1s concerned with structures and processes for
decision-making, accountability, control and behaviour at the upper
levels of the organisation. The Council has a responsibility to put in
place arrangements for the conduct of its affairs, ensure the legality of
activities and transactions and to monitor the adequacy and
effectiveness of these arrangements in practice.

As auditor, T have a responsibility to review and report on the
Council’s corporate governance arrangements.

Performance issues are reported separately at section 5 following,

Matters from previous years

4.

I am pleased to report that remedial action has been taken in regard to
most of the matters raised in both management reports issued last year
covering the main financial systems and general computer
environment. Of the thirty nine agreed audit recommendations made
last year, twenty seven had been implemented (69%), while plans have
been put 1n place to recover slippage on the twelve remaining actions.
We will follow up these remaining points at a later date to confirm full
implementation of audit recommendations.

Systems of internal control

5.

The Council has a responsibility to develop and implement systems of
internal confrol, including systems of financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management. This involves undertaking
a proper assessment of the risks facing the Council and implementing
systems and procedures to address those risks.

During the audit, a number of the financial systems were reviewed.
The main findings to which T would direct members’ attention are
detailed overleaf. These have been restricted to the major matters
raised.

31 OCTOBER 2002

PAGE 9 AUDIT SERVICES — AUDIT SCOTLAND



Page 65

Argyll & Bute Council
Report on the 2001/2002 Audit Section 4
7. Payment of creditors. Our audit testing of the creditors system

10.

indicated that most of the key internal controls were operating
satisfactorily. A number of control weaknesses were reported to
management and included the following:

¢  arcview of the procedures used for the payment of invoices should
be undertaken to ensure that value for money is being achieved

¢ the payment date overwrite facility should be restricted to the
Creditors Supervisor and the Senior Accounting Assistant

+ the ‘pay all run’ facility should only be used when there is a
business need to do so ¢.g. at times of system upgrades. Excessive
use of this facility could result in loss of interest to the Council and
would distort its invoice payment performance

¢ departments should be reminded of the need for consistent
application of checks on orders and invoices prior to them being
passed to the Creditors Section for payment

* a review of suppliers on the creditors system should be performed.
Where appropriate, duplicate entries should be removed.

Payroll. We carried out an audit of the payroll system which
indicated that there are adequate controls to ensure that payments are
only made to valid employees, all data input is properly authorised,
standing data is complete and accurate, payments have been correctly
calculated and payroll costs are correctly recorded in the financial
ledger. However, there are some areas where we identified potential
improvements. These relate to the need for formal written procedural
mstructions and the introduction of a list of authorised signatories.

Management have agreed an action plan that will address the
weaknesses identified above. We will follow this up at a later date.

Property Maintenance DLO. Our review of the budgetary control
system operating within the Property Maintenance DLO identified that
management accounts for DLOs and DSOs are prepared on a monthly
basis, with formal financial monitoring meetings being held quarterly.
The minutes of the financial monitoring meeting held on 30 October
2001 show that a surplus position for the year was being projected for
all DSOs and DLOs. However, the management accounts to 30
September 2001 disclose a work in progress balance of £800,000 in
relation to the Property Maintenance DLO and prior to the 30 October
meeting a review was undertaken which revealed that a number of
jobs were in dispute, with other jobs reported as completed but which
had not been invoiced.

31 OCTOBER 2002

PAGE 10 AUDIT SERVICES — AUDIT SCOTLAND



Argyll & Bute Council

Page 66

Report on the 2001/2002 Audit Section 4

I11.

12,

13.

14

The Commercial Operations Board, at their meeting on 15 November
2001 were informed that all DLOs and DSOs were in a financially
stable position as at 30 September 2001 and on target to break even by
the end of the financial year. Management consider that problems
arose during the second half of the financial year.

Our consideration of the Property Maintenance DLO’s activities
identified that the DLQO’s reported deficit of £85,000 at 31 March 2002
arose mainly from those individual schemes which are separately
tendered pieces of work. For this work, the volume was higher than
anticipated and subsequently did not achieve a reasonable overall
return. The costing system proved not to be particularly effective and
this led to pricing being unrealistic, and ongoing cost control measures
were insufficiently robust. In addition, the DLO underwent internal
reorganisation during the year with changes in key staff, which may
have contributed to the problems encountered.

We understand that the DLO/DSO Financial Monitoring Group, which
meets on a quarterly basis, is continuing to rigorously review the
management accounts of the DLO and that job costing is being
reviewed to ensure prices arc more realistic. Despite the continuing
review, the statutory objectives were not achieved. Auditors will
continue {0 monitor progress in this area and review the financial
position of DLO/DSOs during 2002/2003.

Unified benefits. We carried out an audit of the benefits system
which encompassed both housing and council tax benefits, Our
testing focused on transactions processed in the Campbeltown,
Dunoon and Oban offices. Overall, we concluded that most internal
controls were operating as intended although a number of control
weaknesses were identified and the more significant of these are
outlined below:

+  the Council complies with accepted good practice and has issued
a Benefits Procedure Manual to all staff involved in the
processing of all benefit claims. However, our review of the
Manual identified that it does not make reference to the fact that
staff should not process their own benefit applications or those
of relatives and friends. Also, the Manual does not cover the
procedures to be followed by staff processing backdated
applications and when dealing with the non-return of review
forms

¢+  Council Tax Benefit claimants not returning review forms are
not followed up after a reminder is sent out, for both owner
occupiers and tenants. Benefit is withdrawn from the review
date and no attempt is made to determine when entitlement to
the benefit ceased in these instances

31 OCTOBER 2002

PAGE 11 AUDIT SERVICES — AUDIT SCOTLAND



Argyll & Bute Council

Page 67

Report on the 2001/2002 Audit Section 4

15.

16.

¢+ the Benefits System is only reconciled with the financial ledger
on a yearly basis at the financial year end. This increases the
risk that material errors remain unidentified throughout the year

¢ not all area offices operate a rotation of duties and workload
system, which may lead to a decrease in staff motivation where
workloads are unevenly distributed amongst staff

¢ a data matching exercise for all Council employees has not been
carried out to identify staff who may be fraudulently claiming
benefits

QOur findings have been to be reported in draft to management for their
consideration. Any comments received will be reflected in the formal

report to be issued in early course.

Council Tax Income. Our review of the Council Tax Income
Account, which was conducted as part of the 2001/2002 annual
accounts audit, noted that a reconciliation between the number of
properties held within the Council Tax system and those propertics
held within the assessors’ system is not carried out regularly. We note
that this reconciliation process was commenced by the Council in July
2002 and is now carried out on a regular basis.

Information and communications technology (ICT) audit

17.

18.

19.

20.

QOur planned programme of work for 2001/2002 included two
information and communications technology audit exercises.

Pathfinder diagnostic review (PDR). A PDR exercise is carried out
in year one of our audit appointment and is intended largely to inform
our audit planning process and as such, no report is prepared for
management.  The PDR exercise covers six key themes: -
accountability, acquisition, service management, project and change
management, inventory control and risk and security.

Computer Services Review (CSR). A computer services review was
planned for 2001/2002. However, an Internal Audit review of
Information Technology was carried out during the year. We have
considered the content of this report and have amended our CSR
programme accordingly to minimise any potential areas of overlap. It
is intended that this work be reported by the end of November 2002,

A draft report outlining our findings will be 1ssued in early course for
management’s consideration.

31 OcrToBeR 2002

PAGE 12 AUDIT SERVICES — AUDIT SCOTLAND



Argyll & Bute Council

Page 68

Report on the 2001/2002 Audit Section 4

Fraud and corruption

Internal audit

21.

22,

23.

24,

The Council has the responsibility to establish arrangements to prevent
and detect fraud and corruption. As part of our audit we considered
the adequacy of these arrangements using a standard checklist
approach. Overall, we noted a number of good practices, including
the following:

¢ an ‘Anti-Fraud and Anti-Corruption Strategy’ which aims to
promote the Council’s culture of honesty and integrity;

+ the Strategy also contains defalcation reporting procedures
which outline the amrangements for reporting suspected
frauds/irregularities and the role of internal audit in any
investigation;

¢+ a ‘whistle blowing policy’ that in consistent with the provisions
of the Public Interest Disclosure Act 1998,

¢+ in relation to housing and council tax benefits, the Council has
documented procedures for the prevention and detection of fraud
and corruption, staff training on anti-fraud measures and a
proactive approach to fraud prevention and detection.

Internal audit is a key element of the internal control framework
established by management. A strong internal audit function is
essential for the effectiveness of the internal control systems.

Argyll & Bute Council’s Internal Audit section was comprehensively
reviewed as part of a national value for money study undertaken by
Audit Scotland in 2000/2001. This resulted in a local report, which
concluded that the Council’s Internal Audit section did not comply
with a number of requirements of the CIPFA Code of Practice for
Intermal Audit in Local Government. Our follow up audit work
(outhined in more detail at Section 5 of this report) in the current year
confirmed that the internal audit service has implemented most of the
local report’s recommendations and the head of the section is
committed to continuous improvement,

Internal audit and external audit co-ordinate their work at the planning
stage, and throughout the audit, to ensure there is no duplication of
effort. In financial year 2001/2002, we formally relied on aspects of
work undertaken by internal audit on:

¢  performance indicators;

¢ housing and council tax benefits.

31 OCTOBER 2002

PAGE 13 AUDIT SERVICES — AUDIT SCOTLAND



Argyll & Bute Council

Page 69

Report on the 2001/2002 Audit Section 4

25.

In future years we intend, where possible, to further rely on internal
audit. However, our assessment of the Internal Audit function during
2001/2002 noted the following:

¢  Historically the Internal Audit Manager has had responsibility
for the Council’s fraud officers and has spent a fair proportion of
his time managing and performing benefit fraud investigations.
Such work was not part of the Internal Audit plan. We
understand that a fraud manager has recently been appointed and
for the remainder of 2002/03 there will be a reduction in input
required from the Internal Audit Manager

¢  Internal Audit suffered from a shortage of resources during
2001/02 and two members of staff were recruited in July 2002,
The section now comprises two internal audit managers one of
whom is designated as the lead, two auditors and two audit
assistants. We feel that the Council should consider whether
this 1s the most appropriate structure

¢ There is some question as to whether Internal Audit is
appropriately independent of line management. In practice,
Internal Audit report to the Head of Accounting, who is
ultimately responsible for many of the systems that Internal
Audit review. Although it is acknowledged that Internal Audit
do have access to the Director of Finance, the Chief Executive,
Chairman of the Audit Committee and the audit pariners KPMG,
it may be more appropriate for Internal Audit to report directly
to the Director of Finance and have direct access to the
Chairman of the Audit Committee.

Corporate governance arrangements

20,

An overview of the Council’s corporate governance arrangements was
carried out using a standard checklist approach. We noted that most
the elements necessary to ensure that the Council applies the three
fundamental principles of corporate governance (i.e. openness,
integrity and accountability) are in place. These include the following
areas:

the operation of an Audit Committee;

¢ a comprehensive set of approved financial regulations and
standing orders;
a comprehensive scheme of administration and delegations;

¢ a Risk Management Sirategy for the Council which has been
prepared and approved by elected members;

¢  the formal adoption of a number of codes of practice, including
Codes of Conduct for both Members and Employees and a Local
Code of Corporate Governance based on CIPFA guidance,

31 OCTOBER 2002

PAGE 14 AUDIT SERVICES — AUDIT SCOTLAND



Page 70

Argyll & Bute Council
Report on the 2001/2002 Audit Section 4
27. We note that the Council does not have a detailed corporate plan

28.

Legality issues

29.

30.

31.

32.

incorporating each of the Council Services’ three-year service plans,
The Council’s current corporate aims and objectives are based on the
Community Planning partnership objectives and associated action
plans which lead to the three corporate priorities of promoting health
and well being, improving opportunities for learning, employment and
skills development and sustaining and developing communities,
culture and environment. In addition, the Council has three “strategic
methods” of:

¢  developing our people,

¢ working in partnership;

¢ improving services and containing costs,

As part of the 2002/2003 service planning process, the Council intends
to produce a corporate plan which will bring together in a more
explicit and quantified manner, relevant service and strategic issues.
We will continue to monitor developments in this significant area.

While the responsibility for ensuring the legality of all activities and
transactions rests with the management of the authority, the auditor is
required to keep under review the legality of significant transactions
and events, and have an awareness of the key requirements of relevant
statutory provisions.

In order to discharge my responsibilities in this area, the legality of
items in the accounts are considered by the inclusion of all significant
legal requirements in audit programmes and checklists used in the
conduct of the audit and by the deployment of staff who have
substantial experience of the public sector’s legal framework.

I also review the Council’s minutes for items where the Council’s
Monitoring Officer has raised concermns to ensure that these are
adequately followed-up and resolved. In addition, I obtain from the
Director of Finance written confirmation for each annual audit that the
Council’s officials are not aware of any possible non-compliance with
the law or regulations which could have a material effect on the
authority’s operation.

In the current financial year there have been no legal issues brought to
my attention, of which I require to apprise elected members,

31 OCTORER 2002

PAGE 15 AUDIT SERVICES — AUDIT SCOTLAND



Argyll & Bute Council

Page 71

Report on the 2001/2002 Audit Section 5

Performance Management

4 Matters from pevious years

Centrally directed studies

¢+ Performance management and
planning (PMP})

. Stautory performance indicators

*

As part of my statutory responsibilities [ have to satisfy myself that the
Council has made proper arrangements for securing economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. Also, the Council
has a statutory duty to develop proper management arrangements for
value for money.

In fulfilling that responsibility, external auditors carry out a range of
work. For Argyll & Bute Council, this consisted of the following
main elements:

¢+  follow-up audits of value for money studies undertaken by the
previous auditor and outlined in last year’s Final Report;

¢  centrally directed studies identified by the Accounts
Commission;

¢  performance management and planning (PMP);
¢ statutory performance indicators.
The comments that follow represent a brief summary of the

performance audit work carried out in 2001/2002 and sigmficant
future developments.

Matters from previous years

4,

Property risk management in schools. A follow up audit was
carried out to monitor progress in implementing agreed
recommendations arising from the 2000/2001 audit report on property
risk management in schools. This report compared Argyll & Bute
Council’s performance against good practice as reported in Audit
Scotland’s national report ‘A safer place: revisited’ (June 2001). Our
follow-up audit highlighted that all of 7 agreed audit recommendations
are currently being progressed. Although, the date for implementation
of all 7 improvement actions has not yet been reached, we did note
that progress is being made and that the target date for implementation
should be achieved.

31 OCTOBER 2002

PAGLC 16 AUDIT SERVICES — AUDIT SCOTLAND



Argyll & Bute Council

Page 72

Report on the 2001/2002 Audit Section 5

Benchmarking internal audit. In August 2001, Audit Scotland at
the request of the Accounts Commission prepared a national report ‘A
Job Worth Doing’ — Raising the Standard of Internal Audit in Scottish
Councils. A local report was issued on the basis of the national report
and this included an agreed action plan of improvements. Following
this report the Council chose to seek a suitable partner to establish an
internal audit partnership. After a tendering exercise, KPMG were
appointed to provide 390 days internal audit input over a three year
period. As part of our 2001/02 audit activity, a follow up audit was
carried out to assess progress made by Argyll & Bute Council’s
Internal Audit service in implementing the agreed action plan from the
local report.

Overall, we concluded that Argyll & Bute Council’s Internal Audit
service has made good progress in implementing improvements
recommended in last year’s local report. The service also complies
with many of the key areas of good practice highlighted in ‘A Job
Worth Doing’ although there is still some scope for improvement
mcluding the following areas:

* appropriate staff training has yet to be agreed and delivered;

¢ the introduction of the latest technology for planning and
reporting audit work has still to be considered;

* formats for files, reports and working papers have still to be

finalised.

Management have agreed to take steps to address these issues and we
will monitor progress in implementation in our 2002/2003 review.

Centrally directed studies

7.

Audit Scotland required auditors to carry out two centrally directed
national studies in 2001/2002:

+ a performance audit of trading standards; and

+ managing pre-school provision.

Performance audit of trading standards services. This exercise
involved piloting ‘a tailored performance audit’ approach with trading
standards services across all Scottish councils during 2001/02. The
performance audit model was designed to enable trading standards
services to self-assess their performance against identified good
practice and, where necessary, take action to improve.

The study methodology was based on a self-assessment process
involving three main strands:

31 OCTOBER 2002

PAGE 17 AUDIT SERVICES — AUDIT SCOTLAND



Argyll & Bute Council

Page 73

Report on the 2001/2002 Audit Section 5

10.

11.

¢ service profiles and activity analyses — using data already
gathered nationally for trading standards services

¢ management arrangements — covering PMP issues (e.g.
understanding  stakeholders’ needs, managing staffing,
performance monitoring and control, etc)

¢ service performance — including a series of good practice self-
assessment guides covering elements of trading standards work
(e.g. programmed inspections, consumer advice, animal health
and debt counselling).

The self-assessment carried out by Argyll & Bute Council trading
standards officers was subject to an independent peer review by a
trading standards officer from Falkirk Council although with external
audit taking a lead role.

The main output from the audit was a draft improvement action plan
(IAP) highlighting areas where the frading standards service could
improve its management arrangements and service performance as
appropriate. The IAP is being reviewed by ourselves and a formal
report on the Trading Standards audit will be issued in early course.

Managing pre-school provision. This audit consists of two elements
as follows:

¢  Mandatory element. This part of the audit reviewed the
Council’s armrangements for completing the Pre-School
Education Grant and the Disbursement of Funds in terms of
Sections 23 and 25, respectively, of the Education (Scotland)
Act 1996. The main objectives were to confirm that Argyll &
Bute Council had robust arrangements in place for managing its
contracts with partner organisations and ensuring grant monies
were used to provide a quality service

¢ Discretionary element. This element of the audit will be carried
out at a later stage. The key objective of this element of the
audit will be to review pre-school education provision within
Argyll & Bute Council and compare it against the good practice
framework contained in Audit Scotland’s publication ‘4 good
start: Commissioning pre-school education’. The aim will be to
highlight good practices and identify areas with scope for
improvement.

31 OCTORER 2002

PAGE 18 AUDIT SERVICES — AUDIT SCOTLAND



Argyll & Bute Council

Page 74

Report on the 2001/2002 Audit Section 3

12.

In our report to management we concluded that procedures for the
commissioning of partners appear to be soundly based, and the current
contractual arrangements generally provide for adequate agreement
between the Council and the partner providers for the provision of a
high standard of service and compliance with all statutory registration
requirements. However, we did highlight some areas for
improvement, including that the Council should review the adequacy
of current procedures for review and monitoring of the financial
viability of partner providers.

Management have agreed an action plan of improvements that will
address the relevant areas.

Performance management and planning {(PMP)

13.

14.

15.

The mitial report of the Best Value Task Force issued in July 1997 laid
out the principles of a Best Value approach to managing and
delivering services in local government. The Task Force’s second
report issued in July 1998 required councils to develop a performance
management and planning (PMP) framework to deliver continuous
improvement.

The objectives of the PMP audit are to provide independent external
assurance that the Council is making progress in implementing a PMP
framework and committed to continuous improvement.

For 2001/02 there were three componenis to the PMP audif, as
outlined below:;

* a service level PMP 3 audit carried out in two services —
Community Care and Roads and Transportation — which were
selected in consultation with the Chief Executive;

+ a follow-up audit of the corporate and service level audits
(Personnel, Registration and ‘Transport Services) carried out in
2000/2001 (PMP 2);

¢  further follow-up as necessary of the 1999/2000 service level
audits (PMP 1) which included Sheltered Housing, Non-
Domestic Rates and Estates Management services.

31 OCTOBER 2002

PAGE 19 AUDIT SERVICES — AUDIT SCOTLAND



Page 75

Argyll & Bute Council
Report on the 2001/2002 Audit Section 3
16. In our summary report to the Chief Executive we concluded that the

17.

Council was able to demonstrate a clear commitment and progress in
implementing a Best Value PMP framework. We also found that
services had made significant progress in implementing previously
agreed improvement actions and could also provide evidence of
tangible service improvements. We also identified key issues that
require input at a corporate level:

¢ the need to develop and implement a corporate asset
management strategy. The current position provides a means to
manage assets but could be more efficient;

¢ the need to consider the introduction of commitment accounting,
Budget monitoring on a full accruals basis would be facilitated
by the introduction of a system of commitment accounting. This
would allow services to monitor and control their budgets more
effectively; and

¢+  the requirement to review Public Performance Reporting (PPR),
to ensure a wider range of local measures are included in the
PPR. Attainment of strategic objectives, achievement of value
for money and communication of future plans are all areas
which could be considered for inclusion in future PPRs.

We were also able to report that a number of tangible achievements
have been made by all services subject to a PMP audit since the
imtroduction of the Best Value regime. Some of the more significant
are summarised below:

¢  Estates Management: the service has introduced the
Performance Review and Development system to ensure staff
skills develop in tandem with changes and improvements to
service delivery;

¢  Non Domestic Rates: regular consultation exercises are being
undertaken and clear objectives have been set;

¢ Sheltered Housing: increased levels of satisfaction expressed
by tenants who appreciated involvement in the service standards
adopted;

¢ Corporate: joint working has been established throughout the
Council. Partnerships with various groups including the NHS,
Keep Scotland Beautiful (KSB) and a Public Private Partnership
(PPP) with Shanks have ensured that a number of initiatives
have succeeded;

¢  Corporate: the implementation of a Social Inclusion Policy has
reduced the exclusion from the workforce of the five most socio-
economically deprived areas by providing improved education,
training and employment opportunities.

31 OCTOBER 2002

PAGE 20 AUDIT SERVICES — AUDIT SCOTLAND



Page 76

Argyll & Bute Council
Report on the 2001/2002 Audit Section 3
18. PMP 3 service audits. Overall we concluded that both services

19.

20.

covered by the PMP 3 audit in 2001/2002, 1.e. Community Care and
Roads and Transportation, each had a sound PMP framework in place
although with scope for improvement including:

Community Care Services

¢+  the need to ensure that Best Value principles and approach are
implemented throughout the service particularly those arcas of
activity which have yet to receive a Best Value review;

¢+  ensuring action plans are prepared as a result of each Best Value
review. A monitoring system 1s also required to ensure that
progress can be evaluated;

+  the requirement to fully implement the agreed performance
management planning (PMP) framework. This will allow
performance on a range of topics to be reported systematically to
management and members.

Roads and Transportation Service

+* the need to ensure that future consultation exercises include an
appropriate range of participants;

+  the requirement to develop a range of efficiency reviews to be
undertaken within the service. These should be incorporated
into future service plans;

¢  ensuring that future Public Performance Reports contain
performance measures more relevant to the service’s activities.
Alternative methods (other than statutory performance
indicators) of reporting need to be considered.

An improvement agenda has been agreed with the management of
each service to further strengthen their PMP framework, This will be
followed up by us at a later date.

PMP 2 follow up audits. A total of 52 improvements were agreed for
the PMP 2 service level audits and PMP 2 corporate audit completed
in 2000/2001. Of these agreed improvements, thirty (58%) have been
implemented as planned. Overall, we were satisfied with the reasons
provided by services for not fully implementing all improvement
actions and plans have been put in place to recover any slippage. The
outstanding improvement actions will be followed up by us at a later
date to confirm full implementation.

PMP 1 follow up audits. Our follow up audit work confirmed that
the majority of improvement actions had been fully implemented, with
the residual issues outstanding being substantially complete.

31 OCTORER 2002

PAGE 21 AUDIT SERVICES — AUDIT SCOTLAND



Argyll & Bute Council

Page 77

Report on the 2001/2002 Audit Section 5

Statutory performance indicators

21.

22,

23.

24,

The Local Government Act 1992 requires the Accounts Commission
to issue directions to local authorities to publish information relating
to their activities in any financial year which the Commission consider
will facilitate the making of appropriate comparisons (by reference to
cost, economy, efficiency and effectiveness) between:

(a) the standards of performance achieved by different authorities in
that financial year; and

(b) the standards of performance achieved by such bodies in different
financial years.

The Commission’s ninth Direction was issued in December 2000
requiring the publication, by 30 September 2002, of specified
performance data in relation to the 2000/2001 financial year in the
form of a ‘statutory advertisement’,

We are pleased to record that the authority achieved publication of the
advertisement within the statutory timetable and that, generally, the
published performance information complied with the relevant
Direction,

However, we noted that in 2001/2002, four of the Social Work
Performance Indicators (PIs) were found to be unreliable, compared to
three in 2000/2001. This was due to the fact that the Council was
unable to provide a complete audit trail between working papers and
the reported PIs. In addition, one PI within each of the areas of
Libraries, Housing and Planning was found to be unreliable. These
Pls were deemed unreliable as the systems used to collect the required
data were flawed. It was necessary to draw attention to these matters
in our report and further development is required by the Council to
secure full compliance with the Direction.

31 OQCTOBER 2002

PAGE 22 AUDIT SERVICES — AUDIT SCOTLAND



Argyll & Bute Council

Page 78

Report on the 2001/2002 Audit Section 6

Concluding remarks

I am pleased to be able formally to conclude the audit of the Council
for 2001/2002.

The key issues that require action are set out in the form of an Action
Plan at Appendix A.

This is the first year of my audit appointment, and I should like to take
this opportunity to record my thanks to those officers and members of
the Council with whom we have had contact during our audit for their
courteous and helpful co-operation.

31 OCTOBER 2002

PAGE 23 AUDIT SERVICES — AUDIT SCOTLAND



Page 79

GUNVTLODS LNV — STOIAYES 1IANY

¥7 3ovd

2007 ¥9dg0L00 T¢

SB S[BIOIJO IOTUAS PUR SI9QLUQTI
Jo dnoi3 Suuojmow v "uonesnpg
10J UIea) 20UeUly pajusiugne

ue Aq passarford Sureq Apuaund
st ueld uoTIoR SYJ, ‘UoHRONpH

‘uontsod 128pnq pue

dnoin UM [0TUOD [BIOUBUL] UI surpodai [eroueury s, jusunteda(g
SULIONUOLN | paImbal sjustsAoldur o) ssaIppe | UONEONPH ST I0}UOW 0] SNUNUOD
ooueury | 01 paredaid usaq sey uejd uonoe wy | PInoYs [IoUN0D) 2y, Impuadxa
urouQ uoteONpPy “passaIppe 3U1aq ATJUSLIND ST STY T juauneda( uonednpy ¥1/9
"(T00T TaquueaoN
g)eenIunuo)) JIpy ov) 0} pue
(Z00T 1990120 €)DdS 3 Uyi0q 0}
pajoder uoaq aAey S Id 70OT-100T
3] I9A9MOH “YONS SE 32)ITUWII0D
0] pay1odal Jou Sem 11 ABS 0] 1091100
SJoM PUBTI0NS JIPNY "I3IS[SMIU
«PTEOQaDNION SIO[[IoUNoy),,
auop ApeaI1y PITRAOH V | 2 JO S[iE1e Qw ﬁwhpmﬁ%mohﬁ mmom mm,om "pajuatduny
. 30 SLEISP 1IN past N axe y10day [euld 1002/0002
"SJUNOJIR [BNUUE £()/Z007 2y} woIy sensst Surpuesino
SIUNOODY [ENUUy s Jo uonR[duros a3 01 youd | [[B JBY} 2IMSUS P[NOYS [I0UNO)) YT,
£0/200T 107 £00T/£0/1¢ 1S9M g | PosSaIppe aq [[Im PIsIel sonssT oy, 'STEIA SNoTAdxd uroyy sIayey 6®8/F
TR UIIIY
Lq wnm A oy asuodsar yududde usyy| 1) £( PISSAIPPE I 03 ONSS| ydeageavgodeg
N 1117 17 3.V e Caodoy jemyy
ug[d WorRy
v xipuaddy

APV 700Z/T00T 213 uo Jroday
[puno)) ng 7 N8IV




Page 80

ANVILOOS LIdNY — SIDIAYES LIANV

¢7 90vd

€007 9390100 T1¢

SIUNODOY [enuuyY

"jusuImnEIe 1500 AIIQET] SA Sn[ea
198Se J(j] $59N3 PU0ISS 0} A[1B2 00]
WUTYL] "2IMSO[D IS I9)Je SIeak
0€ 01 dn £[qrssod 18] [[14 GoTyM
‘AII[IGRT] [BIUSWIUOIIAUS [B1jua)od
o) AQ 19SJJO ST “IaAamoYy ‘sIeak

¢ leyy -(owmn oy e reuonerado aq
01 ATduurs st yorym “puerd sjqesaow
3undeoxo} ay1] [euoneIado

1o Ayoeden s1eak ¢ 9ABY [[1M S19SSE
TearsAyd 2y 19BQUOD ) JO pUS

oY) IV T IXSU 2] pue Jeak ised
911 JOAD PIAJOAUL SIDIAISS 21} PUB
uorsiaold 11o1) 107 pred saey [[ias
3M "OI9Z Se papIeSal oq p[noys
ddd 2Y1 Jo pu2 9y} Je Yoeq Surassl
S}9SSE U} JO an[eA [enpisal

"SPIEAUG ¢()/200T WOl
PazZIUZ0991 ST JUSLIaaISE AU} JO pus

A1) 1B [IOUN0Y) 91 01 JoBq SUILISASY
$)2SSE JO ONJBA [enpISal [BUL)
31} 1Y} 2INSUS P[NOYS [IOUNO))

£0/200¢T 10} £00T/€0/1¢ 19M 9 [EULf SU3 JeY) ST SII) U0 MIIA Y], oyl “ddd YUSHIISBUET J)SEAY 81/L

"€00T UY2IBA [NUR S20UNUOI
uefd Uonse 9§ "eenIIuro)) A0 ]
o1591enS o1 01 ssa1Soxd Suniodor st
dnoiny oy ‘uepd wonoe oty surese

ssarS01d ma1AI 0} POUSI[QRIS? Waaq PO +1/9

RN ULINIY

Aq wogAr £q oyan asuodsar yuatoBene)y YY) A PISSIPPR I 0) JNSS| ydesdeae adey
T T T rogay e wodoyf (pary

Vv xipuaddy

npny z00Z/100Z 943 uo pioday

[Puno)) Ang ¥ [ASIV




Page 81

ANVTILOOS LIdNY — SADIAYES LIANVY

97 HOVd

00T HHH0120 TE

Suro3uQ

dnoin)
SULIOHUO
SOUBL,]
O8Sa/O1d

"$20IN0sTY 10} uosradsayodg

3 pUB 19pea] [1OUN0) Y ‘gOD
Jo rey)) a4} 0} pepodar st wm)

Ul YoIyM ‘SJUNODDY JUSUWISSBRURIA]
Jo SuuojruonI ATJIUO

"oy wo)) Ao1j0d 21891EnS 9Y) 01
spodal wm) ur yorys [roumno)) Sy
Jo pieog suoned() [RIDISWILIO )
a1p 01 Sunrtodsr Apapen)

:sIsB(q
Ie[nSal B U0 UOP SUTaq SI ST,

'sTseq Ie[nsSax

B U0 O'I(] @ourudiuTey AMadoig
2171 70 uonIsod [erouBUl] Y MDTAST
0] QNUIIIOD PINOYS [I0UNO) ST,
*0'1d dueuauieur A1adorg

/11

SIUNOYOY [BIUTY
£0/200T 103 £00T/€0/1¢€

BN N

"saA1193(qo

$,29TAIOS B 0] 9)NQLIUOD O] 318
YOTUYMm $)OSSE 2$01) FUIAJISSB[0D1 0}
MIIA B 1M sJesse [euoneredo-uou
9} MITASI [[IM SIBISH PUE 2OUBUL]

"201AI3S B 10] s2A1102[qo Aotjod
§,[1oUNo)) 81} JO 2I0UI 1O JUO

JO JUaWLASIYOR 21y} 0} SunnqUIUOD
9Ie S19SSB 2597) IBWaym

$Sasse 0] s1asse [euoneredo

-UOU [[B M2TA2I PINOYS [[OUNO))
2], °*sjosse [euonerado-uoN

¥a/8

€00T/€0/1¢

150M €

‘SJUTIO008
[enuue £0/7007 943 Jo uonaduwos

atp o1 Jouid passaIppe 2q [{Im ST

"IoUURW A[9UIT) pUE dUSI[eaX

® UL pajed0[fe aq 0] So5Ied
PBIYILA0 MO[[E 0] paacidu

s1 $$9001d o3reyda1 poddns [eruso
311 JeY} SINSUS P[NOYS [IOUNO))
ayJ, 'sesaeqdaa yioddns [enua)

CC®IT/L

Aq uanay

asuodsar yuourddeney

[PuUne)
P A PASSAIPPE A 0} INSS|

B P L T

Y
ydeadearg/o8eg

1odoayy jeuly

v xipwddy

NPOV 700T/100T Y3 uo Jodayg
Ipuno)) ng 7 A3V




Page 82

ANVILODS LIANY — SHOIAMES

11any

LT 3OVd

70079340120 1€

gurosuQ

pireAOg V¥

[enprarpul unpim pajerodiosur ATy
sanuond 91e10d109 11am — sanssT
901AIaS pue [eroueuly uo Suruued jo
910AD 124~ © 10712501 Sunq suerd
901AIg * ue[d Merodion),, o poj[eo
JUSWINIOP S[SUIS B JOU SI 2137,

saanoalgo pue senuoud 2jerodios
§,[IoUNO)) 37 Y10q $193[J21

yoryam uepd aye1odios payeisp

z aro0xdde pue dojossp pnoys
[puno) oy, -uepd Jerodio)

8CH LTS

SoOZATEnUR|

108210014 S

‘digsiouyed a1 Jo

pus a1 0} Joud SINJoNIS I} MITASI
01 pasodoad jou st jf -porrad reak

€ ® 10] DN UMM JPNY [Buisiug
1oy diyszomred e ojur parojus

PUE JIpNY [BILI)U] JO SJUSWATURILIR
Sumnuodal pue arnjonis

31 PAMBIARL ATIUDDII [IOUNOYD) ST

Npny [BlISIU]

Jo syuoweduele Surjioder pue
SINOTLIS JUSLITID 9} MOIADI P[NOYS
[12Uno)) 2], -Jpne [BwIduy

Ul

-uonisod feroueury

$.OTA oY yna werqord Lue
SLalat]) A[IyM ‘ATIRINS2I SB 912 ‘gD
Jo xreyy o1 Sunodar Jo uondaoxs
a1qIssod atp yim ‘onurnuoed [Jim
sassad01d osoy ] ‘ssaxSoxd ur yiom
pue Ajianonpord IoXNIom JO JA3]
JUSTIOFRUBLI B 18 MOTAST AT[39 M

Paoo C1/11

A UdYAL

asuodsoy yuourdeny A

une)
3N A pOSSAIPpY 9q 03.oNSS|

DU NY
ydeadeae oy

v xipuaddy

NPV Z00Z/100T 293 uo 1r0doy
[PuUno) Ang » [AsIy




Page 83

ANVILODS LIANY — STIIAYES LIANY

8T 3ovd

0029890100 T¢

JuawaImosoxd-a
Uiim opeu st ssarsoxd
JUSTOLIINS 33UO PAIIPISUOD

3q [l 21Bp 19518) 129M g

SUOISN[OU0D  MITASY MOL]

asat)) 0] wwroyield e opraord [[m
SIY Y, jusamooxd-o uo ssaxfoid
uodn juapuadap s1 SurIojTUIOW
198pnq paseq S[eLIOR [[NJ

£ SPIEMO] SA0W 3T} pie Sununoooe
JUSTINIWIIOY JO UOTIONPOIIU]

"SUOISN[IUOD

SAITAY MOH ¥ JBUM,, 1TSLIND

9} JO JYSI[ a1} Ul passarford

aq [1im Sy T, AS23ens juswoSeurur
198se e 2onpoid 0] sjuBInsuod

Jo juawAorduus 21y) 10§ uoisiaoid
IPEW [10UNOY) 3], "9oURUL]
Aqissod pue sejeysy ¢ Aredorg
woxy ssao01d a1y 01 Indur Yy ‘Jyess
3unsixa J0 y1om 1} SUTRUIPIO

‘Bunioday] soueMIO) I

2T[qnd pue SUNUNosoE
JUSTU)TTIUOD ‘juatusSeusul
108se 0} yoroidde sy surjor

pue dojeasp 03 anunuod pnoys

2% 1BUM., 911 JO IS uI -00 U1 3101 pea € Aeyd J[im [1ouno) [ouno) oy, (dINd) Smuuerd
PaxXIJ o [ 23ep 10818 V wemals N | a4 Jo 1nup) Auadoiq srerodio)) sy, PUE JIINISBUEW S)UBULIO)IdJ 91/07
"2ATIURISONS UBYY
[euoneIuasald axow oq [ 28ueyo
SIq) Inq ued Seiodro)),, ay;
P23[[e9 ST YoIysm Juammaop e aonpoid ‘sueyd 991A10S
[T os Teaf ST, “sue[d 9014198 | IBAK-93I1) 91 JO SJUBIUOD OU) PUE | PIUOD §7 % LT/S]
- Iunoe) _ BEDTTEXBYE |
A YA AQ OYAN asnodsaa Junmddeuey ) Aq POSSOAPPE 3G 0) duss| ydeadeaegodeg
....................................................... goyoy T T odoy e
v xipuoddy

NPV 700T/100T 39 o yroday
[PuUne)) ng ¥ [ASIV




ANVTLOODS 1IANV — STDIAYES LIANY 6C 30v¥d 20029440120 1¢

20pZoo1E 1Rodal SI1QW [BUIRZ(-10 |[OUN0 §IPRSIIPAE 7010 W IATPJR[RS RS2

"J10q Op 0} Asuow

oY) 2ABY 10U PIp 9m pue pareadal
Uus9q ‘suoneloadxa a)1dsap ‘ou pey
ssaxd [eoo[ o) uI S[d FSNISAPE 01
TustaIinbax oy eouts a[qissod jou
seam S, "2Ing pue [AS1y ut sp[oy
asnoy [[e 01 110doy] 9oUBMLIOJIDG
J17qnd © 9JB[NOIID O} Sem

70-1007 107 pouued justidojessp
S "MOIASI JUBISUOD Iopun
SuroguQ pareaoqg v | 1day s1s50001d JYJJ S, [10UNO)) YT

Page 84

“uoyejuswa[duur
10y ayep 19818) 2413 0] 9[qIssod
10U 81 31 ssarfoxd jusurarmooid-a

mouiAy siuatudoroasp PIUOD 91/0T
) _ [runo.) ANDAIJY
AQ WOYAL Aq oy asuodsdd Juduroduvuviy Ol Aq PIsSAIPPE 3G 0) anss| yde.agdeaegpdeg
o T wondy T I uodoy Jeury

v xipuaddy NPV Z00Z/1007 99 U0 poday

[PuURo) Ang 7y A3V




Page 85

¢00¢ 1990320

wnpuelows JIpny
20/1L00¢ S31unodJYy jo Jipny

[1IoUNno09) ajng pue ||ABay

102619 GGEL0 4 002619 SS€L0 L
MTL ¥, 3AI49717IM 1LSV3

d3IMOLVZV1d d0071d ;2
HIOVNVIN LIANY YOINIS VOV VAN ‘933SVH V 4ISV

ANV1LODS :o:«%

¢ XIANAddV

TVILNAAIINOD ANV ALVAIId




Page 86

‘padpamoujoe A[[njoresd a1e Jipne ay) JO 9SIn0d AY) SuLnp Jjeis ypne 0) paplojje aoue)sisse pue uonerodo-oo Ay,

‘(Wwea [, 9oueUI UOEINPH) UdIMQ [ SN Pue (JUBIUNOIIY JOTUAS) dueIejorIA A JA (Sununoddy ae10dio) - INSV) W[IA N SIA (Sununoddy

JO peoH) 159M g JA ‘(eoueur JO 1030211(]) JO0SQINOIN S I UNMm AJ[eqIoAa padiSe uddq sey yorym ue[d uonoe ue Sulejuod WNPUBIOWIW Y J,

*010y pajeadar Jou are s1o)ewW 959y} A[SUIPIOJIL (PAdITe IO U e} UdIq SBY UONOE 9A1}0a1109 ‘Ddjeridordde a1oym ‘pue s10013j0 03 pariodar

Arsnoiadid o1om sjutod Jouru Jo IoquNU Y PIWLIJUO0 A0BINOOE [BMJOR) S} PUB SIOOIJJO JUBAJ[OI U} I PASSNOSIP USAQ Sey WNPUeIOWdW oY ]

Ipny oy uo 1oday [eul z0/1007 Y} Ul 0} pa1Idjal usaq A[snoraaid jou aaey yorym dfdrourid Sununoooe

Jo siopew 10 doueisqns Jo sanssi Aue ‘ojerrdordde se uonoe pue uoneULIOJUl IOJ ‘UONUNE IJNOA 0) MEIP 0) SI Wnpueiowaw sIy) Jo dsodind ayJ,

“JIpne oy} Jo 30odse siy) woij JuIsLie sanssI Jo JquINU € SUISLIBUIINS WNPUBIOWIW

Jpne ue JIUIqnS MOU dM 700 YOI 1€ PIpUd Jeak dy) J0J SIUnodde [enuue A10jnye)s s [1ouno)) dYj JO uoneuruexd oy} jo uondjdwod Suimoj[o,]

NOILONAOY.LNI

Sl

vl

el

[

'l

WnpUDIOWII 1PNy = Z0/100Z SIUnoddy fo jpny
j1ouno) ang puv 434y



Page 87

oy} UM UONBWLIOJUI

‘puo ek
€0/200C 9y} JI0y SsjusuLlel§ [eloueurq
o1 JO jewIO} Y} Ajepdn pue MIIAJI Im
UDUM JUNOJDY ONUIAY PIIepI[OSu0))

193pnq

Surpnjour IOpISUOD [[IM M ‘IOAIMOY

“JUNOJJY ANUIADY
pajepIjosuo) oy} UIm  rmrpuadxo

‘SJunodJde [enuue
£00T/200T U UIYHIM SOIAIIS [IOUNOD)

‘sjunoure pajeipnq
POSOOSIP  UOIYM  SJUNOJOE  [enuUR

1002/000C 9y WOL SIHIP  SIYL
"90IAIQS [10UNO)) OB 10J ImIpuadxd

1PU  pajddpng  ASO[ISIP 0] SAON yoed 10j sjunowe  drmypuadxd | jou pa1a3pngq 9S0[ISIp 10U
oouepinn) uikuedwosde ayy pue JYOS €00T U paedpng  Jo UOISN[OUI | SI0P JUNOIIY ANUIADY PIJePI[OSU0))
oyl urym judwasmbar ou sroardy[ YoIeIN € I[N BIION oy} 0} USAIS 9q P[NOYS UONBIOPISUO)) | oy} Iyl Ppdjou  sem I T
sjuaudainbay
A10IMye)S 2  Supunoddy g
*SOINPAYOS ATBWIUNS 9pNoul pue "20/100¢ 103 paredaid jou
poaoxdwr a1e spunyg Isni], pue poon | oxom s9mpayos Arewuns ‘30 ‘uodn
uowro)) 9y} Jo 10adsar ur sioded | poaordwr oq pnoo sioded Funjiom
€002 SupIom sjuNodoe [enuue €00Z/200C | SPUN ISNI], PpuB poOL) UOWWO))
poaIdy YOIRN ,I€ | Jnowry Ao | 9y} jeyl Insus PINoys [rouno) YL | oyl Jo Ayfenb ay) jey) pajou oap\ T
S)uUnoddy jo uoneaedarg |
S0 jeq AIQISUOASIY UONEPUIWUI0INY urpur g
uondy

WnpUDIOWII 1PNy = Z0/100Z SIUnoddy fo jpny

j1ouno)) ang puv 1431y




Page 88

Ul dv4d 01530
IM, 9y} ur umoys Sureq 03 pesoddo
Se oull ,SUONEN[BAdY, OU} UIIIM
1osse oy} Jo onjea 9y} Jursearour
jou  amypuodxo  opnour  pue
sjuowdIrnbax amsoposip sonoead 3s9q
100[J21 0} SIUNOOOE [eNUUER £00Z/200T
oU} Ul JO9YS Qdue[eqg PIIEPI[OSUO))
oy 0 'l olJo0N  Surpuoure

oul
uonen[eAdl oy} ur popnour 3Sureq
19SSe U} JO onjeA Y} UI JISLAIOUI O}
pue parmour armIpuadxo 9y} uoamioq
QOUDIJIP AU} Yy “dul] SuonIppe,
oY) ur ssoid IedA oy} Sunmp Iom
JUSWIAOURYUS UO PALINOUT dImrpuadxd
[e10} OU} QSO[OSIp 0} 9oq Pp[nom
oonoeld 150q ‘IOAIMOYH “dul] MYV
0} JJO QA 9y ur umoys Jurq
19sse 9y} Jo onjea Qdy) Sulsearour
jou aImipuadxo oy} YIM dul] Jedx
ur IIpuadxy, OY) Ul SSOIZ UMOUS
st axmrpuadxd [eirdes 100yS douereq

paoIdy | €00T KB 1€ O[T BIOJA || J9PISUOD  p[noys  [IOUNO7) 9y, | Pjepljosuo]y Sy 03 ['[ joN U] I
(p,3u0d) syudw.Inbay
A10IMye)S 2  Supunoddy g
S0 jeq AIQISUOASIY UONEPUIWUI0INY urpur g
uondy

WnpUDIOWII 1PNy = Z0/100Z SIUnoddy fo jpny

j1ouno)) ang puv 1431y




Page 89

"SJUOWIRIE]S [RIOUBULJ
oy} JO I9peAI dY) 10J AJI[Iqepue)SIdpun
JO  [9A9] '  Sumurelurew  Js[Iym
opInn s JouonoeId dY) Ul Jey) [Yhm
ouI] OJUI QI0W 1 SUISULIQ 0} MITA B [IIM
JUSWIdIL)S Y} JO JRULIO) Y} I OO [[IM
oM ‘IOAOMOH  “JellIO) 9[qepuR)SIdpUn
AJISed ue Ul Jou SI ‘OpInr) SIdUONOBI]
Oy} UI UMOUS SE ‘SOAIISOY Ul JUSWAOA
[e10] JO JudWdle)S Yl JO JRULIO)
oyl orqissod se Aem A[puoLy-1osn
B UI SJUNOJ9®. I19Y) Juasaxd 03 uonaIosIp
o) daey S[rouno)) jey; pue oAndirosord

"$IUN00OY
siuRIn) JUSUWILLIOAOD) pa1dye(g
O} PUEB SOAIOSIY UO JUSWAAOIN

[e10 L, JO JUoWIdIR}S oY} O} UOIIB[aI Ul
dODV Jo syuswaanbai arnsojosip ayp

"9pINgD) s1auonoRIJ
dOOV  Jo 9.7t  ydesSered
ur  poquosaid  jewroj oyl Yum
ouI| Ul AJ}OLIS SOAIOSOY UI JUSWIAON
[e10], Jo judwolely Ay} pudsaxd
jou sey [OUNO) Y} eyl 1oeJ
9y} 0} anp SI 99138 JoU pnom saIn3y
OU} Jey} UOSBAI AU 'SOAIISIY UO
JUSWIDAOJA [810], JO JUSWIdIR)S Y} Ul
PASOJOSIp ‘Junowe [ejo} Y} 0} 92I3e
10U U9} P[NOM [OIYM ‘JUNOWIE U110 A\
19N 210, 2y} SuIsearoul Jo 109139 oy
OARY P[NOM SIY], POSO[ISIP A[JULIND
Se  UuOonods  SoNI[Iqel] WY}  Fuo]
oY} UIYIM JOU pue J09US doue[eqg
PAIEPI[OSUO)) Y} JO UOI09S FJuIouBUl)
oY) ulyyim  paso[dsIp  °q  Ppnoys
20UB[EQ JUNOIOY SIURIL) JUSWIUIIAOD)

J0U SI )1 Jey) SI 9pIND) SIAUONNOBIJ €002 J00[JO1 SJUNOOOE [enUUB €()0Z/C00C | PAHRJO Yl ‘OpInn)  SIOUONIIORIJ
dODV 9oyi jo Surpueisiopun AN YOIRIN 1€ IO[IN BIIOIA | 9U3 et 2ansud prnoys [ouno) YL | JOOV JO 681+ ydeiSered o 'm
(p3u0d) sjudwdainbay
A10IMye)S 2  Supunoddy g
S0 jeq AIQISUOASIY UONEPUIWUI0INY urpur g
uondy

WnpUDIOWII 1PNy = Z0/100Z SIUnoddy fo jpny

j1ouno)) ang puv 1431y




Page 90

‘uonenIs sy}
JO oIEME dIB [IOUNO)) Y, SHUNOOIE
‘siseq A[qjuout € uo aoed [enuue  700Z/100C Oy uIypIm
SOYB} MOU SIY ], "UONBIIISOAUL SUIMO[[O] "PIO sypuow 9 uey) 1938313 sonbayo | popnjour ussq dAeY S/ °LTF Sul[eIo
7007 1sndny ur wojsAs o) U0 PIPIoA oukjeuueq | pojudsardun 91e3IISOAUL 0) SONUIIUOD | P[O SYPUOW 9 UeY) IedI3 sonbayo
oIoM PO S[IUOW g IOAO sanbayd [V 8uro3-up WIOd[BIA || 3T 18 QInsud pnoys [ouno)) oYL | paiuosardun jeyr pojou M T
yueq ® yseny -y

‘[eLId1EW

0q 0} AToyITUN 918 9SAY [, "19ISIFaI

19SSE ) UO JOU AJJUILIND 91 YOIym

pPoynuapI 9q 03 pue] pue sonxodoxd

1oy renuojod oty sAemye S1 919U}

e} pasIuS00a1 9q PINOYS I JOAIMOH
“BSIOA QOIA PUR IOISISOI JOSSE o) UIIIM “I9ISISOY
sonaodoxd e 01 (SQoudIdfoI dseqerep 19SSy poxI{ 9yl U0 PIjedo] 9q
Aodoxd) smoqunu NY¥dN Suneoore ‘A[Tenuuerq 3sed[ 18 191S139Y 19SSy | 10U PInod yorgm ‘zo0z/100¢ Sump
Se [[oM SB N0 poLued 3UIdq AUALIND poxiy oy pue oseqeieq Apodoid | yusuniedoq soieisg oyl AqQ poyyRUIPI
ST 10)S139Y 19SSy PaxXI] Y} 0} aseqeie(q €002 UB[[V JOIN [ 1uouniedoq sareisg oy Surrouoddr | axom  (00°00¢F A@rewrxoxdde  jo
Ayodord oy Jo  UOHRIIOUOA Y | YIIBN ,[€ /INOWy AWwo], | I9pIsuod  pnoys  [ouno) Y[, | anjeA Yoog ION © M SISSY T
SJOSSY paxly  °¢

S0 jeq AIQISUOASIY UONEPUIWUI0INY urpur g
uondy

WnpUDIOWII 1PNy = Z0/100Z SIUnoddy fo jpny

j1ouno)) ang puv 1431y




Page 91

‘Gurssoooxd
0} toud ‘pasuoyne Apodord  ore
SWLIOJ [[B Y8t} INSUD [[IM Wed ], dJULBUl]
uoneonpg oy} pue sy Surpiedal
SYJV 0} ponssl oq [[Im owdw V

3o
UNLIM 9q [[IM OOUIQMJIP PO[IOU0IIUN
OU} PIAJIYOE SI SIY} 90U  “SYUOW
oIoW IO OM) IOJ QJUQIQJJIP owes
Suraoryoe spiemo} Jurjiom AJIUoLIND
ole wWed) Mueq pue [sed Yl Ppud
Iedk oy oouls (OO‘[[F BOIIO PAUTBWAI

00¢ PBUODPIEIN
1290100 1€ uoIeyg

‘Juoumredo(q uoneonpyg
oy 03 passed Juroq a10Joq Aprodoxd
PAII}IS0 OIB SWLIOJ JSAY) JBy) 2INSUD
0} juowaimbar oYy Jo sjueIsIsSy
ooueul,{ BaIy judwaedo uoneonpy
puluel  p[noys  [ouno)  dYL

"OOUQIQJJIP PI[IOU0IIUN
SIY) SsaIppe 0) udye} 3ureq uoroe

"IOUOBY ], PBOH JUBAJ[AI Y} AqQ
pPoyNIdd uooq jou pey quowntedaq
uoneonpg dY) 01 s[ooyds  £q
panruqns punj juowdde[dor swon
[endeo woxy meipyim o) uonedrdde
-Vedd uwuo4,, ¢S Jjo [ejo) ' JoO
N0 § Jey) PIJOU JAIOSY uUonBINpH
oY} WOIj S[EMBIPYIIM pue 0}
suonnqLIuod jo 3unsd) yupny T

IAIISIY uonedINp °S

"8TE 113 JO junowre
porrouodarun  ue  smoys  (00ZH8

"ON) UONBI[IOU0J3I JUNOIJY ueq

SeY  QOUSI_JJIP  pIo[rouoddrun Y[, Surog-up | anowry AWO], | o3 WIUOd P[noYs [OUNOD) OY | SWOdU] JY} Iyl PAoU M T
(PJuod) yueqg ® ysed
S0 jeq AIQISUOASIY UONEPUIWUI0INY urpur g
uondy

WnpUDIOWII 1PNy = Z0/100Z SIUnoddy fo jpny

j1ouno)) ang puv 1431y




Page 92

90P* €010 ¢ UOISIOA [BUL} ~OWAW JIPNE  g()[(SIUNO0II. [BUI)\Z0-]() [IOUNOD qPR\S)IPNE 70-[() 99U SABP\JR[oSUB\IOSN\:0

‘uonewegewe
POMIIADI 0} Joud [eaoxdde erorpnl ‘posearour oq
*K18SS000U Suroq orerzdoxdde ureiqo o1 ‘spung ISniy, | 01 S[OA9] oIMIpuAdxd MO[[B 0} Spun,f
oroym  [eaoxdde [eopnl  jueAd[al dIe spunj [t Suneweewe uUIYM PIMO[[OJ | Isni] [ Sunewed[ewe SpIEMO]
oy Sururejqo ‘armnpaocoid (B3] JUBAS[AI 1SN} IS[IyM ore sampadoid [e39] ojeudordde | Sunjpom  APJUOILIND QI8 SOOIAIOS
s A[dwod  im S9OIAIOS  [BSO] guro3-uQp IR UesSng (| o3 jeyy 2INSUS pPInoys [OUNO) 9y, | [BSOT 1Byl puBISIdpUN I T
spuny
ISNA], pue pooH uoOWwWo) °9
S0 jeq AIQISUOASIY UONEPUIWUI0INY urpur g
uondy

WnpUDIOWII 1PNy = Z0/100Z SIUnoddy fo jpny

j1ouno)) ang puv 1431y




Page 93

APPENDIX 6

Argyll and Bute Council —2001/02

Report on the Performance Audit of Trading Standards

Asif A Haseeb, MBA ACMA, Senior Audit Manager, Audit Scotland
7" Floor, Plaza Tower, East Kilbride, G74 1LW
T 01355619200 F 01355 619201



Page 94

ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL - 2001/2002 AUDIT

PERFORMANCE AUDIT OF TRADING STANDARDS CONTENTS
CONTENTS Page
Section 1 1

Executive Summary

Section 2 4

Improvement Agenda

Section 3 7
Introduction
Section 4 9

Resourcing the Trading Standards Service

Section 5 13

Management Arrangements

Section 6 22

Service Performance

APPENDICES
* Appendix 1 ~ PMP Scoring System used in pro-forma’s 30
. Appendix 2 ~ Definitions of large, medium and small size Trading 31
Standards Services
2 Appendix 3 ~ Glossary 32

NOVEMBER 2002 AUDIT SERVICES-AUDIT SCOTLAND



Page 95

ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL - 2001/2002 AUDIT

PERFORMANCE AUDIT OF TRADING STANDARDS SECTION 1

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Introduction

1.1 Audit Scotland piloted a tailored performance audit approach with trading standards
services across all Scottish councils as part of the 2001/2002 programme of centrally
directed studies. This involved developing a performance audit model to enable trading
services to self-assess their performance.

1.2 At a national level the study is being undertaken in close collaboration with SCOTSS,
DTI, LACORS, TSI, COSLA (see Glossary at Appendix 3) and other key stakeholders.
A central multidisciplinary team, comprising staff from Audit Scotland and two
seconded officers from councils, led the work on the study. The national report ‘Made

to Measure? An overview of trading standards services in Scotland’ was published on 3
October 2002.

1.3 This report sets out the findings from our local audit work at Argyll and Bute Council
(A&B C) and makes reference to the national report and good practice, as appropriate.

Trading Standards Service

1.4 Trading standards services are key to protecting the interests of consumers. The services
they provide originate from a duty to inspect weights and measures, but now encompass
responsibilities for ensuring that businesses comply with trade and consumer legislation.
Responsibility for regulatory enforcement lies with councils, who should be aiming to
provide uniformity in the standards of inspection and regulatory services. Other
discretionary services also provided by trading standards include consumer advice and
debt counselling.

Audit objectives, scope and methodology

1.5 The study has two complementary objectives:

. to pilot the development of a new performance model, tailored to trading standards
(see exhibit 1 below)

o to use that model to assess the performance of trading standards services and
identify areas where there is scope for improvement in current practices

Exhibit 1 : The performance audit model being piloted

M anagement arrangements

Operational

Service
profiles
and
activity

analyses

Performance
Audit

Continuous
improvement

Review
« compliance
with best
practice
standards

« outcomes and

impact

NOVEMBER 2002

AUDIT SERVICES-AUDIT SCOTLAND



Page 96

ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL - 2001/2002 AUDIT
PERFORMANCE AUDIT OF TRADING STANDARDS SECTION 1

1.6 A self-assessment guide was issued to both auditors and council staff involved in the
trading standards study. It explained that the study involved a review of both statutory
and discretionary trading standards services. The guide emphasised that the study
methodology was based on a self-assessment process involving:

. service profiles and activity analyses — using data already gathered nationally for
trading standards services

. management arrangements — covering performance management and planning
issues (e.g. understanding stakeholders’ needs, managing staffing and other
resources, performance monitoring and control, and public performance reporting)

o service performance — including a series of good practice self-assessment guides
covering elements of trading standards work (e.g. programmed inspections,
consumer advice, animal health and debt counselling).

Audit Scotland also held joint workshops at several locations throughout Scotland,
which were attended by external auditors and the lead contact trading standards officers
from their councils. The scope of the trading standards study and the methodology to be
used were explained in detail while demonstrations of the benchmarking information
and software for analysing it (‘“COMPARE’) were also provided.

Peer review process

1.7 The self-assessment carried out by Argyll and Bute Council trading standards officers
was subject to an independent peer review by a trading standards officer from Falkirk
Council with external audit taking a lead role.

Overall conclusion

1.8 In general, our conclusion is that Argyll and Bute Council’s Trading Standards Service can
demonstrate that it has sound performance management framework in place and is
committed to continuous improvement. Moreover, the service scores perform above the
Scottish average in implementing minimum service standards, good practice and better
practices in relation to mandatory services and also has a good standard of service in
relation to discretionary services.

Summary of Main Findings

1.9 There are a number of good practices within the Council and these include the
following:

Resourcing the trading standards service

. The service uses a generic approach to staffing. This means that inspection visits
do not require to be made by a qualified TSO unless metrology is involved. Also,
the service uses staff other than TSOs for other enforcement activities if qualified
staff are not required.

Management arrangements

NOVEMBER 2002 2 AUDIT SERVICES-AUDIT SCOTLAND



Page 97

ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL - 2001/2002 AUDIT
PERFORMANCE AUDIT OF TRADING STANDARDS SECTION 1

. The trading standards service has a sound Performance Management and Planning
(PMP) framework in place and is well developed in relation to Best Value reviews,
service planning, and performance monitoring and reporting.

o Argyll and Bute Council’s trading standard service scores above the Scottish
average in all of the PMP criteria while, in comparison to other similar councils it
is either the top or second top performer in eight of the ten PMP criteria.

Service performance

e Argyll and Bute Council performs above the Scottish average in implementing
minimum service standards, good practice and better practices in the following
five areas: (business services and advice; investigation of offences; programmed
inspections; consumer advice and consumer education and information) and above
the minimum service standard and good practice in relation to debt counselling.

e Monthly and quarterly reports on a range of performance indicators are provided to
management while elected members receive an annual report on performance.

1.10 Areas where we consider the Council’s procedures have scope for improvement include:

o Resourcing Trading Standard Service: The risk profile of businesses liable to
inspection requires to be updated to bring it into line with LACORS guidance.
Work should also be undertaken to ensure that consumer complaints and enquiries
are being recorded in line with the OFT (1998) definitions.

. PMP: There is scope for improvement in relation to clear leadership, aspects of
human resource management and in obtaining continuous improvement.
Management are committed to continuous improvement and have agreed to
address to take action to address these issues in the improvement agenda at Section
2.

. Service standards: Argyll and Bute have identified that it needs to further develop
its enforcement policy and this is included in their improvement agenda.

IMPROVEMENT AGENDA

1.11 An Improvement Agenda containing recommendations to address the arecas where
improvements could be achieved is outlined at Section 2 of this report. These have been
discussed and provisionally agreed with the appropriate officials. The Improvement
Action Plan should be read in conjunction with the relevant reference from the main
findings from the audit. We will follow up progress in implementing the improvement
action plan at a later date.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

1.12 The co-operation and assistance given by all officers contacted during the course of this
review is gratefully acknowledged with particular thanks to Sandy Taylor (Head of
Protective Services) and Kate Connelly (Chief Trading Standards Officer) who were the
main contacts during the audit.

NOVEMBER 2002 3 AUDIT SERVICES-AUDIT SCOTLAND



Page 98

ANVILIOOS L1dNV-SHDIAYAS LIdNV

7007 YTINAAON

*$assa001d

2IeMPYOS HIVIINOD
Suisn sonjLIoyINe

Ioad 0} oAT)R[AI

*SJUSWOSUBLIE FUIPIOIAT
1sonbar  9o1ape  Jo pny
‘sysonbai

‘3uIp10991 19pUN 0}
onp 9q pnod sjsenbar

‘uoniuyap
oY} Y)IM 9OUBPIOIIE UI
sysanbai 9o1ApE SsouIsnq

paAIdoa1 sounbuo pue | oo1Ape ssoulsng Jo SUIPI0dAI 201ApE ssaursnq [T& P10921 0} Pa2u Y} JO
wowadeuew  [euroul | sjure[dwod JO JOqWINN | Ul UONOAIP  JO  QNSS| "BJep J[qRI[IAIOIN | Jo Ioqunu ur doi | Ppopurwdldq pP[noys jjels ‘¢
21eM0S TYVIINOD ‘saumbuo pue
Sursn sanLoyne ‘sjuowoSueLIe sjure[dwod  ISWNSUOD
Io0d 0} oAne[aI | Surpiodar Amnbud jo jipny 10J suonwip (8661)
"$9s59001d | PaAIOOaI soumbud pue suonuydd LI0 140 01 paudAuod Ay | “sounbuod pue sjurejdwod
wowadeuew  [eurul | syure[dwod JO JIdqUINN | JO OSN UI UONOAIIP JO NSS| "BJep J[qRI[I AIOIA | Jou  sey judwedog JO SUIpPI0JaI MIIAY ‘T
‘s)Is1A paurueigod 1oy
Suner ysu mou juoworduy
‘@SN 921N0S9Y
‘owayos mau A[dde pue "JUSWAIIOJUD [QAJ]
"Juswdojanap "SONIAT)OR JUSWIADIOFUD | aseqeiep  sostwdrd  mo1Ady | ySry 1oy 2doos pasearou]
pue Buiuiea | 19A9] IoySIy ur dsearou]
"SI9213J0 01 Jururer) pPIAOI] “JUAUWIADIOJUD
'S9S8S9004d | "SIOOIJFO WOIJ JYOeqPad Pa123Ie) onag ‘Sunepdn
juswabeuew ‘2ouepIns sarmbar oundar Suner ‘sostoxd
|eulaju| "SIOpRI} WOI) JOBAPA] | SYODVT  MdU MY "S90IN0SAI JO IsN 19139¢ | sno1adxd J10J dreuoney |  Jo Sunel YSLI oY) MIIADY ‘|
{01 eI d[qe.Insedw
uonde  JuduwdAcIduwr 2 PIAIYIE U pue JSygnads yoq 93q
)1 (] SI0p | dARY S)JAUIQ PIPUUL Judwdaoadur | pnoys SIYJ, (IAdYIE 0)
IT Ad Ul SSuipedy | Jey) SSISSe 0) Isn nok | siy) J10J SU0)SI[IW | papuNuUI  JudwdAoaduut {SUISSaIppe uonde ‘uonde JudwdAoIduur
o jo PIYA\ | M uopeurioyul JeyAy | 393foad A3y oY) axe jeypy | sy St yeyA\ | sty) st widfqoad jeypy | pouuerd ay jo uondrsaq
9’190 s’l°D L) £'1°D 19D 1’100
VANTOV INHINIAOAYdINT  °I
7 NOILDES SAYVANVLS ONIAVYL A0 LIANY IONVNIOAYAd

LIANY 700Z/100¢ - TIONNOD ALNG ANV TIAOYY




Page 99

ANV1LOOS LIANY-SADIAYFS LIANY 2007 44GNAAON
Juowdoaasq 'ssa001d Y Ad
pue Sururea| "JUSAQ Fururer) yoes 1oye Jenuue oy} jo jred
SI0YJO Aq udyeopun se pajen[ead AjeuLioy
's9ss0001d 9q 0} uonenjeAq SL }] 'SIseq [euwLojur
juowdgeuLwW  [RUIAU] ‘(ururen) uonoeysnes | [opow drerodiod J09JJo pallsop | Ue U0 UM eldpUn “JUIAD
Jes poroxdwy | oyy  Suisyun  ‘uonenead | SUIAdIYOR ST Fururen | si Sururen Jo| oy 1oye  pojenyeAd
"9SN 90IN0SAY | [OrqPI9) s1901J0 | Sutureny  jsod  oyeyepun | IOYIAYM SSIsse 01 AN[IQy | uonen[eAd uasaid 1y | Ajjewoy 9q o) Sururei], ‘/
"019 SIBUTWIOS ‘S}O[JBa] BIA
'$001A13s Joddns ssoursnq | poddns ojerrdoadde 1oArjoq
Jo dn oyey poseorou]
*9ST 90IN0SY '$10309S 9sa}
"SUOIJBIOOSSE | JOJ SPoou 90100  AJuap| ‘s1open
sdiysuone|al | spenn  woI  OBQPAI] JIM UONEBINSU0d soAoxdw]
|eula)xg "SY[UI] [eWIO] YSI[qeIsq ‘s19pes) 0}
"10J93S apen "uoreonpa 'sdnoJg 1ope1) | 901AISS JO SSOUAATIOLJQ
9OIAJIOS JOWO0ISNY) | JUBAS[AI WO oBqpPadg '$10J09S A9 AJ1JUop] | JOpel}  QAIOSJJS QIO | UMM SYUI[ [BULIO] ON aaoxdwg 9
‘SuB[J 90IAIOS SpIepue}S
Juowdo[aaap pue Suiper], pue uonooId "90IAIOS ‘siseq 91e10d109 "ue[d 99IAIS
Surureo]  'sossooord NOBQPISY IOOJO | dqnd Oyl UM O0UQIJAI | UONDJ0Id  dlqnd 9y} [ B U0 YIM  J[BOP | AU} UIYIM UM J[BIP 9q
JjuowdSeURW  [RUIIU] NoeqpadJ owoisn)) | ogroads Jo  woIsnpou | unpim AN[Iqeiunodde Ied[) | APUQLIND SI anssI SIYJ, | 03 Ajjenbs Jo onss| S
"SI901JO
's;osn | 03 sororjod  mou  onss|
O0IAIOS  WOIJ YOoeqpao,]
'slapjoyayels ‘soto170d Ao 1JeIpoy
uo joedwi Aolod SI9O1JJO WOIJ Jorqpas ] "SIOSN 90TAIAS 10J
‘sonuiond AJnuapy | uonewojur  apraoid A
"sessaoo.d JOIAIDS ‘aInjonys snotaaxd
wswabeuew | 1 . opow, A sarod ‘paxmbar "SIO01JJO J0J 9ouepImS | 0} 9Je[2I pue PIrEp "SONIATJOR 9109
jeulou| | gy Jo uosuedwo)) | sojepdn jo 1si oudwo) | 1esd ‘quommd apraoid [[IAn | xe  saiod  Sunsixg Joy sarorjod ayepdy 'y
7 NOILDFS SQUVANYLS ONIAVIL A0 LIANY AONYWIOALITd

LIANY 700Z/100¢ - TIONNOD ALNG ANV TIAOYY




Page 100

ANVILIOOS L1dNV-SHDIAYAS LIdNV

7007 YTINAAON

"SIOpIOYYeIS
uo joedwr Ao1[0q

‘sdiysuone[ar [euIdIxXyg

"Kotjod mau astorqng

"SI901}JO 0) douepIng

"UOIJOB JUSWIADIOJUD | pue  Jururen  dpIAoI]
JuswdodAsp | o1  sw)sAs  pasoxduy ‘SIQWINSUOD PUE SIOPEI)
pue Buiuites 2Ipooosd mou Pei | J0J UOIBULIOJUI  JAIBI[)D)
"SIOpeI) WOIJ Yoeqpad *010 SUOIBINSIAUL
"'sossao0.d ‘sampasoxd "SIOOTJJO TUSWDIOFUR | Jo uonesnuoLd oI Jyess "Korjod
Juswabeuew  [eulsju] | SISOIJO WOIJ JOBAPID, | FUNSIXD MITAYY | 10  2ouepm3 19130 | J0J dduepind Ied[o ON | judwotojud dopoadg I

‘Jodoy
‘A[renuue [enuuy uonoANoIg
SQWI0JIN0 doueuoyrad "Kem O1jBWIRISAS | o1[qngd UuIgpIm
pue sja3re) s3ury) IOYJ0 "ULI0J 9[qISS20® AJIpear | & ur o1jqnd opew sAem[e | papn[oul oq 03} S}NSAI
‘sdiysuone[oy [euIaxy 1sSuowre Jurfrelop odoy | Ul SIOPEN puB SIdWNSUOD | jou SI Jo3Ie) jsurede | pue douewiojrod

"90IAIS JAWO0ISN)) OBQPI9J JOWO0ISN)) | UONI0IJ dIqnd B ysiqng | 03 d[qe[leae  s}nsoy | oouewojrad Jo synsoy | 10) s3o81e) Jo S[reed 0l
'sgurp[ing/sAerdsip
uoreuLIOJul orqnd
ur pue SysIA s 3uLnp
‘sgurrewt orendoxdde
ur - J9ed]  Qy)  onss|
"00IAIS "SIOWNSUOD PUe SIOpeRI) ‘pastorgnd “pastorgnd
oy Aq opewr  so3Ieyd | am UONBOIUNWITIOD | JOU dJe Ing 3sonbox uo | 9q pP[noys S1osn 99IAIOS
"90IAIS JAWO0ISN)) OBQPIQJ JoW0ISN)) | SUIQLIOSAP J9[JBI[ B YSI[qNd | QANIYID QIOIN | 9]qe[reA® oIe sd3Iey)) | ssouisng Ioj saSIeYD 6
*9S1019Xd ‘Sunjrewyouaq
IoIIEd WOl  PAaynuopI Sunyejropun 10J
Seale 9SOU} Ul SoNLIOYINE “JudwdgeURW 0} ssao01d oY) osijeuLIO)
‘Juowdo[oAap 1ad  ur  Suppewyouaq | payodar 9q pinoys synsal p[noys Ajoyine
pue Surures $s9001d OYBLIOPU | Y} pUB [IOUNO)) A} UIIIM o JuotaAoxduur
‘Juowdopaasp | sonuoyne 133d s dnois | juowdaordw  Snonuruod "sIseq [eULIOJUI UE U0 snonunuod
"SN 90INOSAY | JIAIAS Sumunuo)) | SupfeWIYOUSdq B YSI[RISH | 0} PeI]  P[NOM  SIYL | USNBMOpPUN  AUALIN)) | dINSUd 0} JPIO U] '

¢ NOILDHS

SQUVANVLS ONIAVYL A0 LIANY AINVINIOAdAd
LIANY 700Z/100¢ - TIONNOD ALNG ANV TIAOYY




Page 101

ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL - 2001/2002 AUDIT
PERFORMANCE AUDIT OF TRADING STANDARDS

NOVEMBER 2002



Page 102



Page 103 Agenda Item 7

ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL AUDIT COMMITTEE
FINANCE 21" FEBRUARY 2003

PROGRESS REPORT ON INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2002 - 2003

1. SUMMARY

An interim progress report has been prepared covering the audit work performed by
Internal Audit during the third quarter of 2002 — 03. The objective of the report is to
advise members of the progress with the annual audit plan. (See Appendix 1).

2.  RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 The Audit Committee is asked to approve the progress made with the annual audit
plan for 2002 - 03.

3. BACKGROUND

3.1  The progress report contained in Appendix 1, lists the audits scheduled for the
financial year 2002 —2003 and ordered by section and level of completion.

3.2 Internal Audit has dropped one of the audits within the annual plan entitled
Purchase Ordering and Certification as the objectives of this audit have been
covered by another audit within the programme. This decision was particular to
this year only as it made sense to combine this audit with the Purchases of
Equipment and Materials audit. Audit Scotland and our audit partners KPMG have
agreed this decision. The saved audit time has been transferred to other audit areas.
This reduces the total number of core audits from 16 to 15 audits.

3.3 Good progress has been made in general with all audits. Of the 15 core audits 11
have been progressed as at the end of the 3™ quarter. A total of 8 final audit reports
have been issued with a further 3 at dratft.

3.4  Good progress has also been made with non-core audits. Out of a total of 6 audits
5 have been progressed with 4 final reports issued.

3.5 At the last Audit Committee a report was tabled highlighting a staff shortfall and
its impact on the annual audit plan that had resulted in 6 audits facing possible
deferment. At the end of the 3™ quarter we are pleased to report that 3 of these
audits have been made progressed with a planned programme for the remaining
audits to be complete by the year-end.

3.6  Follow-up work has been covered for both internal and external audit management
reports. The reviews carried out for the external audit reports are the subject of
separate reports to the Audit Committee.

4. SUMMARY OF 3rd QUARTER AUDIT ACTIVITIES FOR 2002 - 2003

4.1  Atthe end of the 3™ quarter the Audit Assistant left to take up a post with the
Housing & Social Work Department. Steps are being taken to secure a



4.2

5.1

5.2

53
54

5.5

Page 104

replacement. In the meantime through agencies, 2 temporary qualified auditors

have been recruited and they will allow the full audit programme to be completed

by the year-end. (See 3.5 above).

It should be noted by the Audit Committee that the Internal Audit Performance

Indicators for the first 3 quarters show that for:

INPUT PERFORMANCE MEASURE TARGET | ACHIEVED
Input Performance Measure 2 & 3: - -

e Draft Reports issued within 10 days 100% 100%

e Final Reports issued within 5 days 100% 82%
Input Performance Measure 4: - -

e Report Standard Achievement 100% 100%
Input Performance Measure 5: - -

¢ Questionnaire audit quality, 3 = Agree | Grade 3 and | Grade 3/4

4 = Strongly Agree above

OUTPUT PERFORMANCE MEASURE TARGET | ACHIEVED
Output Performance Measure 2: - -

e Follow Up Reviews within time scale | Achievement | Achieved
Output Performance Measure 4: - -

e Recommendations Accepted 100% 100%

The remaining performance indicators are annual task evaluated.

CONCLUSION

Progress is being made on audits planned for 2002 — 03 and at present it is

anticipated that all the audits will be finalised by the end of the financial year.

IMPLICATIONS

Policy: Update on audit plan for 2002 — 03.

Financial: The audit plan is based on existing budgeted
provision.

Personnel: None

Legal: None

Equal Opportunities: None

For further information please contact lan Nisbet, Internal Audit Manager (01546 604216)

Tan Nisbet

Internal Audit Manager 21february2003.
21febprogreport21feb



Column F is automatically updated by: Time charges against jobs 02_03.xls

Page 105

APPENDIX 1

Assessment of audit days: 2002-2003 strategic plan

AUDIT WORK Last Risk ranking Original Revised Actual Out Come Days
audited 2002 -03 Estimated Audit | Estimated Audit | Audit Days| for Internal
Days 2002-03 Days 2002-03 2002-03 Audit

Core financial systems

Capital accounting/Fixed Asset Management - 2 20 20 24 -4
Cash and income banking 2000/01 2 20 20 28 -8
Council tax and non-domestic rates 2000/01 2 30 30 25 5
Unified benefits system 2001/02 2 50 50 55 -5
Housing rents 2001/02 1 20 20 14 6
Treasury management - 2 20 20 19 1
Stock taking 2001/02 - 15 15 20 -5
IT / MIS strategy and controls KPMG 2001/02 - 30 30 15 15
Debtor accounts 2001/02 1 20 20 9 11
Payroll 2000/01 3 42 42 32 10
Purchases of equipment and materials 2001/02 2 20 20 26 -6
Government grants - 1 20 20 0 20
General ledger operations 2001/02 2 20 20 3 17
Creditor payments 2001/02 2 30 30 0 30
Budgetary preparation and control - 1 20 20 0 20
Subtotal core financial systems 377 377 271 106
|Section Total 377 377 271 106 |
Non-financial systems / Best Value / VFM

Transportation and property - 2,8 20 20 19 1
DLO’s - 1 20 20 26 -6
Performance Indicators 2001/02 - 70 70 90 -20
Performance indicators (PMP) - - 33 33 38 -5
Best Value reviews - - 30 30 10 20
Corporate governance compliance / risk - - 30 30 0 30
Subtotal non-financial 203 203 181 22
Section Total 203 203 181 22
Actual Direct Audit Time 580 580 452 128
Special investigations contingency - - 115 115
Capital Programme 2 -2
Victoria Hall 3 -3
Housing 2 -2
Vehicle leasing — special investigation 2001/02 - 24 -24
Contractor Liquidation - DES 2 -2
Chief Execs 3 -3
Dunoon Pool 11 -11
Corporate Accounting 17 -17
Benefit Fraud 32 -32
General Special Investigations (from Oct 02) 11 -11
Section Total 115 106 I 9
IF ollow-up external audit management letter - - 20 21 -1
Risk assessment, strategic plan, annual plans - - 20 0 20
Ilmernal audit follow up Section Total - - 40 8 32
POSSIBLE DEFERMENTS

Core financial systems

1. Capital contracts 2001/02 3 30

2. Tendering procedures 2001/02 3 20

3. Car allowances 2001/02 3 20 20 6 14
Total 70

Non-financial systems / Best Value / VFM

4. DSO’s - 4,7,9 35 35 2 33
5. Education - 3,4, 11 40

6. D p t and envir I services - 3,6 20 20 2 18
DEFERRED

Purchase Ordering and Certification - 30 30
|7otal 125
|Section Total 195 75 10 | 95 |
Admin 148 -148
|Total 970 655 745 135




Page 106



Page 107 Agenda Item 8

ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL AUDIT COMMITTEE
FINANCE 21" FEBRUARY 2003

ANNUAL AUDIT PLAN 2003 - 2004

1. SUMMARY

This report introduces the Annual Audit Plan for 2003/04, which is part of the 3 year
Strategic Audit Plan/Audit Needs Assessment presented and approved by the Audit
Committee on the 24™ May 2002.

2.  RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 The Annual Audit Plan for 2003/04 is approved. In approving this, Members should
consider whether additional resources be provided or audit scope, timescales and
assessments modified.

3. DETAILS

3.1  Asan ongoing 3 year audit programme the Annual Audit Plan for 2003/04 is
attached. (See Appendix 1).

3.2 The Audit Plan for 2003/04 has been drawn up from an Audit Needs Assessment
prepared in conjunction with our internal audit partners KPMG and Council senior
management. Audit Scotland have reviewed and agreed the plan.

3.3 The number of audit days for 2003/04 is shown against each audit area. In
accordance with the Strategic Audit Plan some new areas will be addressed in
2003/04 that were not covered in 2002/03.

3.4  Internal Audit believes that adequate audit coverage and assurance can be
provided if the required resources are in place.

4. CONCLUSIONS
The Audit Plan addresses the key areas highlighted in the Audit Needs Assessment

and will provide an annual assurance statement on the Council’s overall internal
audit framework.

5. IMPLICATIONS
5.1  Policy: None
5.2 Financial: None
5.3 Personnel: None
54  Legal: None

5.5  Equal Opportunities: None



Page 108

For further information please contact lan Nisbet, Internal Audit Manager (01546 604216)

Ian Nisbet
Internal Audit Manager 21February2003.
21febprogreport21feb



Page 109

Internal Audit APPENDIX 1

ANNUAL AUDIT PLAN 2003-2004

Core financial systems Risk
ranking

Budgetary preparation and control 2002/03
Debtor accounts 2002/03
Government grants 2002/03
Stock taking 2001/02
Cash and income banking 2002/03
Council tax and non-domestic rates 2002/03
Creditor payments 2002/03
Purchases of equipment and materials 2002/03
Unified benefits system 2002/03
General ledger operations 2002/03
Treasury management 2002/03
Car allowances 2002/03
Payroll 2002/03
Purchase ordering and certification 2000/01
Tendering procedures 2002/03
Registration of births, marriages and deaths 2002/03
Direct transport costs

Payments to voluntary associations

Contract hire and operating leases 2002/03

Public transport costs 2000/01

Subtotal core financial systems _—

F:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\2\619\4100007962\ANNUALAUDITPLAN20030400.doc

_]-



Page 110

Internal Audit APPENDIX 1

Non-financial systems / Best Value / VFM Risk 2003-04
ranking

DLO’s 2002/03
IT / MIS strategy and controls 2002/03
Performance Indicators 2002/03
Corporate governance compliance / risk management 2002/03
Transportation and property 2002/03
Best Value reviews 2002/03
Performance indicators (PMP) 2002/03
Education 2002/03
Development and environmental services 2002/03
DSO’s 2002/03

Housing and social work

| Subtotal non-financial | | | 348 |

Special Investigation/ Risk Assessment/ Follow- Last 2003-04
up audited

Special investigations contingency 2002/03
Risk assessment, strategic plan, annual plans 2002/03

Follow-up external audit management letter points 2002/03

Internal audit follow up 2002/03

A I

Total 970 ||

Note: It is intended that where reviews are repeated in subsequent years, that the focus / emphasis will change.
For example, payroll will be audited every year but it will cover main departments on a rotational basis.

F:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\2\619\4100007962\ANNUALAUDITPLAN20030400.doc
0.




Page 111

0L6 ST SIT Lol 8LI 8LI 01 SL

0T - S - 01 S

001 - 9 4! 8P S L 0T

86¢C Sl - 801 Ol 0¢ Sl 0¢

0¢ 01 - - - S - Sl

(449 - 60T 0L 0¢ 871 0L S

NI jue)sisse JUE)SISSE  JUBJUNOIIY JUBIUNOIIY JISBUR]N JIGRUBIA

e, npny JIpneE I01UdS upny  ypny

IO PN 30311 10) [BI0 L
sueld

[enuue pue ueld o13918NS
S91oUASUN U0 IOYI0 / pnel
aneA 159 /

Aauow 103 anjeA / [euonerad(
yipne ndwo)

dn-moroy; Lyrengoax

/ SW)SAS TRIOUBULY 9I0))
AI0M\ NIPNY 39311

ONdM / 1PNy |eulaju|



Page 112



